Cityaf C : S sm

) ' Worth Lake Worth Beach, Florida. The Art of Florida Living.

IR :Z Beac)h 7 North Dixie Highway
\\ FLORIDA Lake Worth Beach , FL 33460
/< 561.586.1600

AGENDA
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2021 - 6:00 PM

ROLL CALL:

INVOCATION OR MOMENT OF SILENCE: led by Vice Mayor Herman Robinson

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: led by Commissioner Christopher McVoy

AGENDA - Additions / Deletions / Reordering:

PRESENTATIONS: (there is no public comment on Presentation items)

. House Appropriations Update by Richard Pinsky
. Mango Groves Neighborhood Association Presentation

A
B
C. Proclamation recognizing 2021 Transgender Day of Remembrance
D. Proclamation declaring November 27, 2021 as Small Business Day
E

. Proclamation declaring December 1, 2021 as World AIDS day

COMMISSION LIAISON REPORTS AND COMMENTS:

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OF NON-AGENDAED ITEMS AND CONSENT AGENDA:

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
A. Work Session - October 21, 2021

CONSENT _AGENDA: (public comment allowed during Public Participation of Non-
Agendaed items)

A. Resolution No. 82-2021 — authorizing the execution of a Library Services and
Technology Act (LSTA) grant award

B. Accept and Approve the Parking Revenue Audit Report

PUBLIC HEARINGS:

A. Ordinance No. 2021-13 and Ordinance No. 2021-14 — Second Reading — amending
the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment (Ordinance 2021-13) and the Zoning
Map (Ordinance 2021-14) on behalf of the PBC School District as follows: (1) a FLUM
amendment from the Single Family Residential (SFR) FLU to the Public (P) FLU:; and
(2) a rezoning from the Single-Family Residential (SF-R) zoning district to the Public
(P) zoning district on properties located at 1509 Barton Road, 1511 Barton Road, 1515
Barton Road, and 1421 Barton Road




Ordinance 2021-09 - First Reading — Deletion of administrative appeals process to the
City Commission for land development decisions

Ordinance No. 2021-21 — Second Reading — Ballot language to allow a candidate to
concede without forcing a run-off election

. Ordinance No. 2021-22 — Second Reading — Ballot language for changing to single-

member district voting, with the mayor remaining at-large

Ordinance No. 2021-24 — Second Reading — Ballot lanquage regarding the filling of
commission vacancies

UNFEINISHED BUSINESS:

A.
B.

C.

Discussion regarding a traffic calming policy

Resolution No. 83-2021 — Fiscal Year 2022 operating budget amendment providing
$50,000 from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Coronavirus State and Local
Fiscal Recovery Funds to support a partnership with the Legal Aid Society of PBC,
Inc.

Ordinance No. 2021-20 — First Reading — Ballot lanquage for setting term limits of two
consecutive terms for a given seat by referendum on March 8, 2022

NEW BUSINESS:

A.

B.

Purchase authorization for Quicklime from Lhoist North America of Alabama, LLC for
the Water Treatment Plant

First Amendment to Agreement with Allied Universal Corporation to purchase Sodium
Hypochlorite (Bleach) for water treatment and odor control

Agreement with Odyssey Manufacturing Co. to purchase 50% Caustic Soda for water
treatment and odor control

. Work Order #2 and Second Amendment with B&B Underground Construction, Inc. for

emergency sewer main repair

. Purchase Order with Alan Jay Fleet Sales for the procurement of fleet replacement

vehicles

Purchase Order with Nextran Truck for the procurement of a new Front Load Garbage
Truck

. Purchase Order with Orlando Freightliner for the procurement of a new Rear Steer

Garbage Truck

Resolution No. 84-2021 — FY 2022 Third Budget Amendment of the Five-Year Capital
Plan to reflect the additional funding and appropriation for the Memorial Park Pavilion
Renovation capital project.

Umdasch/DOKA Settlement

CITY ATTORNEY'S REPORT:




CITY MANAGER'S REPORT:

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND WORK SESSIONS:

November 30 - electric utility
December 7 - regular meeting
December 21 - regular meeting

Draft Agenda - December 7, 2021

ADJOURNMENT:

The City Commission has adopted Rules of Decorum for Citizen Participation (See Resolution No. 25-
2021). The Rules of Decorum are posted within the City Hall Chambers, City Hall Conference Room, posted
online at: https://lakeworthbeachfl.gov/government/virtual-meetings/, and available through the City Clerk’s
office. Compliance with the Rules of Decorum is expected and appreciated.

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the board, agency or commission with respect to any
matter considered at such meeting or hearing, he or she will need a record of the proceedings, and that,
for such purpose, he or she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which
record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. (F.S. 286.0105)



Action:

MINUTES
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH
CITY COMMISSION WORK SESSION — COMMISSION PRIORITIES
CITY HALL COMMISSION CHAMBER
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 21, 2021 - 5:00

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Resch on the above date at 5:26 PM in the City
Commission Chamber located at City Hall, 7 North Dixie Highway, Lake Worth Beach,
Florida.

ROLL CALL: (0:34) Present were Mayor Betty Resch (via Zoom); Vice Mayor Herman
Robinson and Commissioners Sarah Malega, Christopher McVoy and Kimberly Stokes. Also
present were Interim City Manager Juan Ruiz, and City Clerk Melissa Ann Coyne.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: (0:53) led by Commissioner Christopher McVoy.

UPDATES / FUTURE ACTION /DIRECTION (1:16)
A. Commission Priorities

Consensus to discuss the beach complex at the November 8, 2021 city commission work
session.

ADJOURNMENT: (3:06:12)

The meeting adjourned at 8:32 PM.

Betty Resch, Mayor
ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk

Minutes Approved: November 16, 2021

Item time stamps refer to the recording of the meeting which is available on YouTube.



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Leisure Services

TITLE:

Resolution No. 82-2021 — authorizing the execution of a Library Services and Technology Act
(LSTA) grant award

SUMMARY:

The resolution approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Library Services and
Technology Act (LSTA) grant award in the amount of $31,100. This grant funding is for the
purpose of developing the City’s Literacy City Campaign.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

Resolution No. 82-2021 approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the LSTA Grant
Agreement 21-LSTA-B-06 that has been funded in the amount of $31,100 for the development
of the City’s Literacy City Campaign. The City will provide an in-kind matching cost share in the
amount of $31,870 that is related to the value of staff salaries that are associated with the
implementation of the grant funded program.

This campaign is aimed at increasing fundamental and cultural literacy among the residents of
Lake Worth Beach. Critical components include a Literacy City curriculum unit, a “This is
Literacy City” virtual program, a Literacy City board game, a Literacy City virtual walking tour,
an “I Live in Literacy City” video series, a Literacy City postcard set, and a monthly literacy event
hosted by the City’s municipal library.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 82-2021 approving and authorizing the Mayor to
execute the Library Services and Technology Act grant agreement 21-LSTA-B-06 funded at
$31,100.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Resolution 82-2021
Grant Agreement 21-LSTA-B-06



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures 62,970 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 31,100 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 31,870 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Account Description | Project FY22 Current Budget Agenda Balance
Number Number Budget Balance Transfer | Expenditure
180-0000- | Library Grants TBD $0 $0 $0 $31,100 $31,100
334-70-00
180-9720- | Contractual Services TBD SO SO $27,500 $27,500 SO
529.34-50
180-9720- | Parks and TBD $0 $0 $6,000 $3,600 $0
572.52-00 Recreation/Operating
Supplies
001-8020- | Salaries TBD $142,196 | $0 $0 $31,870 $110,326
571-12-10




O oYU WN B

DA, PP, DB DWW WWWWWWWWNNNNNNNNNNMNNRRRRRRRRRR
AP OWONPFPOOONODULPWNPFPOOONOUPMAWNPEPRPOOOLONOOUPEAWNDLPE,O

82-2021

RESOLUTION NO. 82-2021 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE
THE LIBRARY SERVICES AND TECHNOLOGY ACT GRANT
AGREEMENT 21-LSTA-B-06 IN THE AMOUNT OF $31,100; PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, grant funding under the Library Services and Technology Act (‘LSTA”)
is provided to public libraries for the purpose of improving literacy rates for residents of
the communities they serve; and

WHEREAS, grant funds are made available to eligible grantees under the LSTA
program to supplement the operating budgets of eligible public libraries to develop literacy
campaigns vital to increasing literacy rates among residents in the community; and

WHEREAS, the City has been awarded Fiscal Year 2021-2022 grant funding in
the amount of $31,100 for the development of the Literacy City Campaign to increase
fundamental and cultural literacy in the City; and

WHEREAS, the City will provide an in-kind matching cost share in the amount of
$31,870 related to staff salaries that are associated with the grant; and

WHEREAS, the terms and conditions for the use of the grant award and matching
cost share are set forth in the grant agreement 21-LSTA-B-06; and

WHEREAS, these grant funds will serve a valid public purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

SECTION 1: The City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, hereby
approves and authorizes the Mayor to execute the grant agreement 21-LSTA-B-06 for
grant funding in the amount of $31,100 to develop the Literacy City Campaign to increase
fundamental and cultural literacy in the City.

SECTION 2: Upon execution of the resolution, one copy shall be forwarded to the Leisure
Services Department Director. The fully executed original shall be maintained by the City
Clerk as a public record of the City

SECTION 3: This resolution shall become effective upon adoption.



45
46
47

48
49
50
51
52
53
54

55

56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66

Pg. 2, Reso. 82-2021

The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ,
seconded by Commissioner , and upon being put to a vote, the vote
was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted on the
day of , 2021.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk



PROJECT NUMBER 21-LSTA-B-06

LIBRARY SERVICES AND TECHNOLOGY ACT GRANT
AGREEMENT BETWEEN
THE STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF STATE
AND
City of Lake Worth Beach for and on behalf of Lake Worth Beach Public Library

This Agreement is by and between the State of Florida, Department of State, Division of Library and Information
Services, hereinafter referred to as the “Division," and the City of Lake Worth Beach for and on behalf of Lake
Worth Beach Public Library hereinafter referred to as the "Subgrantee."

The Subgrantee has met all eligibility requirements and has been awarded a Library Services and Technology Act
Grant (CFDA 45.310) by the Division: grant number 21-LSTA-B-06 for the project “Literacy City” in the amount
of $31,100. Federal funds are provided through the Library Services and Technology Act under Florida’s long-range
plan approved by the Institute of Museum and Library Services. State of Florida authority for this grant has been
appropriated in the FY 2021-2022 General Appropriations Act on line 3095. The Division, as administrator of federal
funds in accordance with Section 257.12, Florida Statutes, has the authority to administer this grant. By reference,
the application and any approved revisions are hereby made a part of this agreement.

In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. Grant Purpose. This grant shall be used exclusively for the “Literacy City,” the public purpose for which
these funds were awarded:

a)  The Subgrantee shall perform the following Scope of Work:

The Lake Worth Beach Public Library will implement a campaign to increase foundational and cultural
literacy among the residents of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, spearheaded by the Lake Worth Beach
Public Library.

Literacy City is a project aimed at increasing literacy in Lake Worth Beach. It contains components to
reach school-age children, young adults and adults in schools and neighborhoods. Some of the
components include: a Literacy City curriculum unit, a "This is Literacy City" virtual program, a Literacy
City board game, a Literacy City virtual walking tour, an "I live in Literacy City" video series, a Literacy
City postcard set and a monthly literacy event hosted by the Library.

All tasks associated with this project, will be performed by September 30, 2022.

b)  The Subgrantee agrees to provide the following Deliverables related to the Scope of Work for
payments to be awarded.

Page: 1



Payment
Type

Payment

Deliverable Descripti D tati
eliverable Description ocumentation Amount

1 Fixed Lake Worth Beach Public  To document evidence of completion of the ~ $7,775
Price Library will have created an  deliverables Lake Worth Beach Public
outcome-based assessment Library will provide examples of the required
tool that is appropriate for ~ outcome-based evaluation questions, along
each impacted activity of ~ with written details of when and where the

the project (Instructional survey questionnaires will be used.
Program for General (Cumulative survey results will be reported on
Public). the Final Report.)

2 Fixed Lake Worth Beach Public  To document evidence of completion of the ~ $7,775
Price Library will have: 1. deliverables Lake Worth Beach Public
Created and developed the  Library will provide: 1. Copy of the literacy
literacy campaign program. campaign program developed. 2. Copy of the
2. Contracted with Phase9  contract.
Design to design and
produce Literacy City
campaign materials.

3 Fixed Lake Worth Beach Public  To document evidence of completion of the ~ $7,775
Price Library will have printed deliverables Lake Worth Beach Public
and produced the campaign Library will provide invoice(s) for the printing
materials. and production of the campaign materials.

4 Fixed Lake Worth Beach Public  To document evidence of completion of the ~ $6,220
Price Library will have: 1. deliverables Lake Worth Beach Public
Installed literacy tutorials Library will provide: 1. Screen shot and link
on the library’s website. 2.  to tutorials on website. 2. Link to videos.
Recorded two (2) “I live in
Literacy City” videos.

5 Fixed Lake Worth Beach Public  To document evidence of completion of the ~ $1,555
Price Library will have held three  deliverables Lake Worth Beach Public
(3) literacy events. Library will provide a report that shows the
date, topic and number of attendees at each
event.

Totals $31,100

c)  The Subgrantee has provided an Estimated Project Budget (which is incorporated as part of this
Agreement and titled Attachment A). All expenditures for this agreement shall be in accordance with this
budget.

Page: 2



Length of Agreement. This Agreement shall begin on August 6, 2021 and shall end September 30, 2022
unless terminated in accordance with the provisions of Section 38 of this Agreement.

Expenditure of Grant and Matching Funds. The Subgrantee shall only obligate or expend grant or matching
funds during the length of the agreement. No costs incurred after the ending date of the Agreement or other
termination of the Agreement shall be allowed.

Contract Administration. The parties are legally bound by the requirements of this agreement. Each party's
contract manager, named below, will be responsible for monitoring its performance under this Agreement and
will be the official contact for each party. Any notice(s) or other communications in regard to this agreement
shall be directed to or delivered to the other party's contract manager by utilizing the information below. Any
change in the contact information below should be submitted in writing to the contract manager within 10 days
of the change.

For the Division of Library and Information Services:

David Beach, Library Program Specialist
Florida Department of State

R.A. Gray Building

Mail Station #9D

500 South Bronough Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0250

Phone: 850.245.6630

Facsimile: 850.245.6643

Email: david.beach@dos.myflorida.com

For the Subgrantee:

Cindy Ansell, Librarian

Lake Worth Beach Public Library

15 North M Street Lake Worth Beach Florida 33460
Phone: 561.533.7354

Email: cansell@lakeworthbeachfl.gov

Grant Payments. All grant payments are requested by submitting a Payment Request. Payment Requests and
supporting documentation must be submitted on the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com. The total grant
award shall not exceed $31,100 which shall be paid by the Division in consideration for the Subgrantee’s
minimum performance as set forth by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The grant payment schedule
is outlined below:

a)  All payments will be made in the amounts identified with the Deliverables in Section 1 of this Agreement.

b)  All payments will be made in accordance with the completion of those Deliverables.

Electronic Payments. The Subgrantee can choose to use electronic funds transfer (EFT) to receive grant
payments. All Subgrantees wishing to receive their award through EFT must submit a Vendor Direct Deposit

Page: 3


https://dosgrants.com/

10.

11.

12.

Authorization form (form number DFS-AI-26E rev 6/2014), incorporated by reference, to the Florida
Department of Financial Services. If EFT has already been set up for your organization, you do not need to
submit another authorization form unless you have changed bank accounts. To download this form

visit myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Forms/DFS-A1-26E.pdf. The form also includes tools and information
that allow you to check on payments.

Florida Substitute Form W-9. A completed Substitute Form W-9 is required from any entity that receives a
payment from the State of Florida that may be subject to 1099 reporting. The Department of Financial Services
(DFS) must have the correct Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) and other related information in order to
report accurate tax information to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS). To register or access a Florida Substitute
Form W-9 visit flvendor.myfloridacfo.com. If the Subgrantee has not previously submitted a copy of the
Subgrantee’s Florida Substitute Form W-9, a copy must be submitted with the executed Agreement.

Changes to Project. Should the Subgrantee wish to make changes to the outcomes, Scope of Work,
equipment to be purchased, key personnel, expenditures or deliverables, the Subgrantee must request
permission to revise the project. This is done by submitting a Change Request. Changes within a budget
category that are more than ten percent (10%) of the award or that move funds from one budget category to
another require submission of a Change Request. Approval must be obtained from the Division before the
changes are implemented in the project. Approval will be granted for changes that are consistent with the intent
of the approved application or prior Change Requests. Changes to the project must be requested using the
Change Request in the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com.

Amendment to Contract. Either party may request modification of the provisions of this Agreement by filing
a Change Request with the Division. The Change Request must be submitted using the DOS Grants System

at dosgrants.com. Changes that are agreed upon shall be valid only when amended in writing, signed by each of
the parties and attached to the original of this Agreement. If changes are implemented without the Division’s
written approval, the organization is subject to noncompliance, the grant award is subject to partial or complete
refund to the State of Florida and this agreement is subject to termination.

Financial Consequences. The Department shall apply the following financial consequences for failure to
perform the minimum level of services required by this Agreement in accordance with Sections 215.971 and
287.058, Florida Statutes:

Payments will be withheld if the Deliverables identified in Section 1 of this Agreement are not satisfactorily
completed.

Grant Reporting Requirements. The Subgrantee must submit a Mid-Year Report on or by January 31,
2022. The Mid-Year report must be submitted using the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com. At the
completion of the project, the Subgrantee must submit a Final Report on or by November 1, 2022. The Final
Report must be submitted using the DOS Grants System at dosgrants.com.

Matching Funds. If a project is awarded less than $10,000 ($0-$9,999) in grant funds or is a statewide project
administered by a local organization as part of a Division statewide program, no matching funds are required.
All other projects must provide local matching funds that equal a minimum of one-third (1/3) of the amount of

Page: 4


https://myfloridacfo.com/Division/AA/Forms/DFS-A1-26E.pdf
https://flvendor.myfloridacfo.com/
https://dosgrants.com/
https://dosgrants.com/
https://dosgrants.com/
https://dosgrants.com/

13.

14.

15.

federal grant funds awarded. Upon request, the Division will waive the financial matching requirements on
grants for libraries located in counties or communities with rural status in compliance with Sections 288.0656
and 288.06561, Florida Statutes.

In addition, the following are not allowed as matching expenditures:

e Other federal grant funds.
¢ Volunteer time.

Grant Completion Deadline. The grant completion deadline is September 30, 2022. The Grant Completion
Deadline is the date by which all grant and matching funds have been expended in accordance with the work
described in the Scope of Work as detailed in the Estimated Project Budget.

Acknowledgement of Grant Funding. Both the Institute of Museum and Library Services (IMLS) and the
Division require public acknowledgement of Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) grant funding for
activities and publications supported by grant funds. Any announcements, information, press releases,
publications, brochures, videos, webpages, programs, etc. created as part of an LSTA project must include an
acknowledgment that LSTA funds were used to create them.

Use the following text:

“This project was funded under the provisions of the Library Services and Technology Act from the
Institute of Museum and Library Services. Florida’s LSTA program is administered by the Department of
State’s Division of Library and Information Services.”

Additionally, when the subgrantee issues statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid solicitations
and other documents describing the programs funded in whole or in part with federal money, all of the
following must be clearly stated:

1. Percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the program or project which will be financed with
federal government money.

2. Percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program financed with state government
money.

3. Percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the project or program financed with local government
money.

4. Percentage and dollar amount of the total costs of the program or project financed with other non-
governmental money.

Grant Expenditures. The Subgrantee agrees to expend all grant funds received under this agreement solely for
the purposes for which they were authorized and appropriated. Expenditures shall be in compliance with the
state and federal guidelines for allowable project costs. State guidelines for allowable costs are outlined in the
Department of Financial Services’ Reference Guide for State Expenditures (as of January 2020), incorporated
by reference, which are available online at

https//www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/manuals/documents/R eferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf.
Federal guidelines for allowable costs can be found at gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-voll/pdf/CFR-
2014-title2-voll -part200-subpartE.pdf in 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart E — Cost Principles (as of September 2019),

Page: 5


https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200-subpartE.pdf

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

incorporated by reference.

In addition, the following are not allowed as grant expenditures:

a)  Construction. Funds may not be used to build, remodel or expand library facilities. However, they may
be used to retrofit a building to accommodate technologies (e.g., wiring).

b)  Audits. If the Subgrantee’s governing entity has received less than $750,000 in federal funds, LSTA
funds may not be used to cover audit costs.

c)  Food. Although food may be served at a program being paid for with grant funds, the food may not be
purchased with grant or matching funds.

d)  Motor vehicles. Grant funds may not be used for the purchase or continuous lease of motor vehicles.

Travel Expenses. The Subgrantee must pay any travel expenses, from grant or local matching funds, in
accordance to the provisions of Section 112.061, Florida Statutes.

Equipment Purchased With Grant Funding. Before the Subgrantee can purchase any equipment with a
purchase price of more than $5,000 (per item), the Division must request approval from the Institute of
Museum and Library Services. The Subgrantee will be notified once the approval has been obtained.

Unobligated and Unearned Funds and Allowable Costs. In accordance with Section 215.971, Florida
Statutes, the Subgrantee shall refund to the State of Florida any balance of unobligated funds which has been
advanced or paid to the Subgrantee. In addition, funds paid in excess of the amount to which the Subgrantee is
entitled under the terms and conditions of the agreement must be refunded to the state agency. Further, the
Subgrantee may expend funds only for allowable costs resulting from obligations incurred during the specified
agreement period. Expenditures of state and federal financial assistance must be in compliance with the laws,
rules and regulations applicable to expenditures of funds. For state funds, guidelines for allowable costs are
outlined in the Department of Financial Services’ Reference Guide for State Expenditures (as of January 2020)
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/manuals/documents/R eferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf),

incorporated by reference. For federal funds, guidelines for allowable costs can be found

gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-voll/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-voll -part200-subpartE.pdf in 2 CFR Part 200,
Subpart E — Cost Principles (as of September 2019), incorporated by reference.

Repayment. All refunds or repayments to be made to the Department under this agreement are to be made
payable to the order of “Department of State”” and mailed directly to the following address: Florida Department
of State, Attention: David Beach, Library Program Specialist, Division of Library and Information Services, 500
South Bronough Street, Mail Station #9D, Tallahassee, FL 32399. In accordance with Section 215.34(2),
Florida Statutes, if a check or other draft is returned to the Department for collection, Subgrantee shall pay to
the Department a service fee of $15.00 or five percent (5%) of the face amount of the returned check or draft,
whichever is greater.

Single Audit Act. Each Subgrantee, other than a Subgrantee that is a state agency, shall submit to an audit
pursuant to the federal Single Audit Act, 2 Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Subpart F — Audit

Requirements (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-voll/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-voll-part200.pdf (as of

Page: 6


https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/manuals/documents/ReferenceGuideforStateExpenditures.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200-subpartE.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2014-title2-vol1/pdf/CFR-2014-title2-vol1-part200.pdf

21.

22,

23.

24.

25.

September 2019)), incorporated by reference. See Attachment B for additional information regarding this
requirement. If a Subgrantee is not required by law to conduct an audit in accordance with the Florida Single
Audit Act because it did not expend at least $750,000 in state financial assistance, it must submit a Financial
Report on its operations pursuant to Section 218.39, Florida Statutes within nine months of the close of its
fiscal year.

Retention of Accounting Records. Financial records, supporting documents, statistical records and all other
records, including electronic storage media pertinent to the Project, shall be retained through June 30, 2029. If
any litigation or audit is initiated or claim made, the records shall be retained until June 30, 2029 or five fiscal
years after the litigation, audit or claim has been completed and all issues arising from it have been resolved,
whichever is later.

Obligation to Provide State Access to Grant Records. The Subgrantee must make all grant records of
expenditures, copies of reports, books, and related documentation available to the Division or a duly authorized
representative of the State of Florida for inspection at reasonable times for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts and transcripts.

Obligation to Provide Public Access to Grant Records. The Division reserves the right to unilaterally
cancel this Agreement in the event that the Subgrantee refuses public access to all documents or other materials
made or received by the Subgrantee that are subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, known
as the Florida Public Records Act. The Subgrantee must immediately contact the Division's Contract Manager
for assistance if it receives a public records request related to this Agreement.

Noncompliance. Any Subgrantee that is not following Florida statutes or rules, the terms of the grant
agreement, Florida Department of State (DOS) policies and guidance, local policies or other applicable law, or
that has not submitted required reports or satisfied other administrative requirements for other Division of
Library and Information Services grants or grants from any other DOS Division will be in noncompliance status
and subject to the DOS Grants Compliance Procedure. DOS Divisions include the Division of Arts and
Culture, the Division of Historical Resources, the Division of Elections and the Division of Library and
Information Services. Grant compliance issues must be resolved before a grant award agreement may be
executed and before grant payments for any DOS grant may be released.

Accounting Requirements. The Subgrantee must maintain an accounting system that provides a complete
record of the use of all project funds as follows:

a) The accounting system must be able to specifically identify and provide audit trails that trace the receipt,
maintenance and expenditure of project funds.

b)  Accounting records must adequately identify the sources and application of funds for all grant activities
and must classify and identify grant funds by using the same budget categories that were approved in the
grant application. If Subgrantee’s accounting system accumulates data in a different format than the one
in the grant application, subsidiary records must document and reconcile the amounts shown in the
Subgrantee’s accounting records to those amounts reported to the Division.

¢)  Aninterest-bearing checking account or accounts in a state or federally chartered institution may be used
for revenues and expenses described in the Scope of Work and detailed in the Estimated Project Budget.

Page: 7



26.

27.

28.

d)  The name of the account(s) must include the grant award number.

e)  The Subgrantee's accounting records must have effective control over and accountability for all funds,
property and other assets.

f) Accounting records must be supported by source documentation and be in sufficient detail to allow for a
proper pre-audit and post-audit (such as invoices, bills and canceled checks).

Availability of Grant Funds. The State of Florida’s performance and obligation to pay grant funds under any
Agreement are contingent upon an annual appropriation by the Florida Legislature and upon an annual
appropriation of the U.S. Congress. In the event that the state or federal funds upon which this Agreement is
dependent are withdrawn, this Agreement will be automatically terminated, and the Division shall have no further
liability to the Subgrantee beyond those amounts already expended prior to the termination date. Such
termination will not affect the responsibility of the Subgrantee under this Agreement as to those funds
previously distributed. In the event of a state revenue shortfall, the total grant may be reduced accordingly.

Excluded or Disqualified. The Subgrantee certifies that to the best of the Subgrantee’s knowledge and belief
the Subgrantee and its principals:

a) Are not presently excluded or disqualified (debarment, suspension and other responsibility matters).

b)  Have not been convicted within the preceding three years of any of the offenses listed in 45 CFR
1185.800(a), (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-
subpartH.pdf (as of September 2019)) incorporated by reference, or had a civil judgment rendered
against them for one of those offenses within that time period.

c)  Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal,
state or local) with commission of any of the offenses listed in 45 CFR 1185.800(a)

(gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartH.pdf (as of
September 2019)), incorporated by reference.

d)  Have not had one or more public transactions (federal, state or local) terminated within the preceding
three years for cause or default.

e) Will comply with 45 CFR Part 1185 Subpart C (Respons1b111tles of Participants Regarding Transactions)
(gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/
September 2019)), incorporated by reference, and wﬂl require similar compliance with Subpart C by
persons at the next lower tier with whom the primary tier participant enters into covered transactions.

Drug-Free Workplace. The Subgrantee will provide or continue to provide a drug-free workplace by
complying with the requirements in 45 CFR, Subtitle A, Subchapter A, Part 76, Subpart F, Drug Free

Workplace Requirements (Grants) (gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-1999-title45-voll/pdf/CFR-1999-title45-voll -
part76-subpartF.pdf (as of September 2019)), incorporated by reference.

This includes making a good faith effort, on a continuing basis, to maintain a drug-free workplace; publishing a
drug-free workplace statement; establishing a drug-free awareness program for employees; taking actions
concerning employees who are convicted of violating drug statutes in the workplace; and identifying (either with

Page: 8


https://gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartH.pdf
https://gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartH.pdf
https://gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2005-title45-vol3/pdf/CFR-2005-title45-vol3-part1185-subpartC.pdf
https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-1999-title45-vol1/pdf/CFR-1999-title45-vol1-part76-subpartF.pdf

29.

30.

31.

this application, upon award, or in documents kept on file in the Subgrantee’s office) all known workplaces
under the award.

Lobbying. The Subgrantee will not use any grant funds for lobbying the state legislature, the state judicial
branch or any state agency. The Subgrantee will not use any grant funds for lobbying an officer or employee of
any federal agency, Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with any of the following federal actions:

a) The awarding of any federal contract.

b)  The making of any federal grant.

c¢)  The making of any federal loan.

d)  The entering into of any cooperative agreement.

e) The extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan or
cooperative agreement.

Delinquent in Repayment of Federal Debt. The Subgrantee certifies that, to the best of the Subgrantee’s
knowledge and belief, the Subgrantee is not delinquent in the repayment of any federal debt.

Nondiscrimination. As required by the Civil Rights Act of 1964, (eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/titlevii.cfm (as of
September 2019)) incorporated by reference, the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid :US C-prelim-title29-section701&num=0&edition=prelim (as
of June 2021)), incorporated by reference, the Education Amendments of 1972 (uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?
path=/prelim@title20/chapter38&edition=prelim (as of September 2019)), incorporated by reference, and the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, as implemented by 45 CFR Part 1180.44
(uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim (as of September 2019)),
incorporated by reference, the Subgrantee certifies that the Subgrantee will comply with the following
nondiscrimination statutes and their implementing regulations:

a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 USC § 2000d et seq.)
(https://uscode. house. govview.xhtml ?req=granuleid: USC-prelimitle42-chapter21-
subchapterb&saved=|KHRpdGxIOjQyIHNIY 3Rpb246MAWMGQENYBIZGI0aW9uOnBy 2WxpbSk=|||0lfalse|prelim&edition=prelim (as of
June 2021)) incorporated by reference, which provides that no person in the United States shall, on the
grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or
otherwise be subject to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial
assistance;

b)  Section 504 of the Rehablhtatlon Act of 1973 as amended (29 USC § 701 et seq.)
= n=prelim (as of September 2019)),
mcorporated by reference Wthh prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability in federally-assisted
programs;

c)  Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 USC §§ 1681-83, 1685-86),
(uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim(@title20/chapter38&edition=prelim (as of September 2019))

Page: 9


https://www.eeoc.gov/laws/statutes/titlevii.cfm
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid:USC-prelim-title29-section701&num=0&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter38&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim
https://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=granuleid%3AUSC-prelim-title42-chapter21-subchapter5&saved=%7CKHRpdGxlOjQyIHNlY3Rpb246MjAwMGQtNyBlZGl0aW9uOnByZWxpbSk%3D%7C%7C%7C0%7Cfalse%7Cprelim&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title29/chapter16/node332&edition=prelim
http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title20/chapter38&edition=prelim

32.

33.

34.

35.

incorporated by reference, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs and
activities receiving federal financial assistance; and

d)  The Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1975, as amended (42 USC § 6101 et seq.),
(uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim(@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim (as of September 2019))
incorporated by reference, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in federally-assisted
programs.

The Subgrantee shall insert a list of similar provisions in all subcontracts for services required by this
agreement.

Copyright and License. When publications, films or similar materials are developed, directly or indirectly,
from a program, project or activity supported with grant funds, Subgrantee (and any of its subcontractors, if
applicable) shall grant the Department of State an irrevocable, royalty-free, non-transferable, non-exclusive right
and license to reproduce or otherwise use, to make derivative works from, and to display and distribute any
copyrighted material developed under this Agreement for any state governmental purpose. The Subgrantee also
grants the federal awarding agency a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or
otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for federal government purposes:

a)  The copyright in any work developed under a grant, subgrant or contract under a grant or subgrant.

b)  Any rights of copyright to which the grantee, subgrantee or a contractor purchases ownership with grant
support.

The Subgrantee shall include the foregoing paragraph in all of its subcontracts.

Independent Contractor Status of Subgrantee. The Subgrantee, if not a state agency, agrees that its
officers, agents and employees, in performance of this Agreement, shall act in the capacity of independent
contractors and not as officers, agents or employees of the state. The Subgrantee is not entitled to accrue any
benefits of state employment, including retirement benefits and any other rights or privileges connected with
employment by the State of Florida.

Subgrantee's Subcontractors. The Subgrantee shall be responsible for all work performed and all expenses
incurred in connection with this Agreement. The Subgrantee may subcontract, as necessary, to perform the
services and to provide commodities required by this Agreement. The Division shall not be liable to any
subcontractor(s) for any expenses or liabilities incurred under the Subgrantee’s subcontract(s), and the
Subgrantee shall be solely liable to its subcontractor(s) for all expenses and labilities incurred under its
subcontract(s). The Subgrantee must take the necessary steps to ensure that each of its subcontractors will be
deemed to be independent contractors and will not be considered or permitted to be agents, servants, joint
venturers or partners of the Division.

Liability. The Division will not assume any liability for the acts, omissions to act or negligence of the
Subgrantee, its agents, servants or employees; nor may the Subgrantee exclude liability for its own acts,
omissions to act or negligence to the Division.

a) The Subgrantee shall be responsible for claims of any nature, including but not limited to injury, death
and property damage arising out of activities related to this Agreement by the Subgrantee, its agents,

Page: 10


http://uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?path=/prelim@title42/chapter76&edition=prelim

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

servants, employees and subcontractors. The Subgrantee shall indemnify and hold the Division harmless
from any and all claims of any nature and shall investigate all such claims at its own expense. If the
Subgrantee is governed by Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, it shall only be obligated in accordance
with this Section.

b)  Neither the state nor any agency or subdivision of the state waives any defense of sovereign immunity or
increases the limits of its liability by entering into this Agreement.

c)  The Division shall not be liable for attorney fees, interest, late charges or service fees, or cost of
collection related to this Agreement.

d)  The Subgrantee shall be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred in connection with
the project. The Subgrantee may subcontract as necessary to perform the services set forth in this
Agreement, including entering into subcontracts with vendors for services and commodities, provided
that such subcontract has been approved in writing by the Department prior to its execution and
provided that it is understood by the Subgrantee that the Department shall not be liable to the
subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under the subcontract and that the Subgrantee shall
be solely liable to the subcontractor for all expenses and liabilities incurred under the subcontract.

Strict Compliance with Laws. The Subgrantee shall perform all acts required by this Agreement in strict
conformity with all applicable laws and regulations of the local, state and federal law. For consequences of
noncompliance, see Section 24, Noncompliance.

Breach of Agreement. The Division will demand the return of grant funds already received, will withhold
subsequent payments and/or will terminate this agreement if the Subgrantee improperly expends and manages
grant funds; fails to prepare, preserve or surrender records required by this Agreement; or otherwise violates
this Agreement.

Termination of Agreement. The Division will terminate or end this Agreement if the Subgrantee fails to fulfill
its obligations herein. In such event, the Division will provide the Subgrantee a notice of its violation by letter
and shall give the Subgrantee fifteen (15) calendar days from the date of receipt to cure its violation. If the
violation is not cured within the stated period, the Division will terminate this Agreement. The notice of violation
letter shall be delivered to the Subgrantee's Contract Manager, personally, or mailed to his/her specified address
by a method that provides proof of receipt. In the event that the Division terminates this Agreement, the
Subgrantee will be compensated for any work completed in accordance with this Agreement prior to the
notification of termination if the Division deems this reasonable under the circumstances. Grant funds
previously advanced and not expended on work completed in accordance with this Agreement shall be returned
to the Division, with interest, within thirty (30) days after termination of this Agreement. The Division does not
waive any of its rights to additional damages if grant funds are returned under this Section.

Preservation of Remedies. No delay or omission to exercise any right, power or remedy accruing to either
party upon breach or violation by either party under this Agreement shall impair any such right, power or
remedy of either party; nor shall such delay or omission be construed as a waiver of any such breach or default
or any similar breach or default.

Non-Assignment of Agreement. The Subgrantee may not assign, sublicense or otherwise transfer its rights,

Page: 11



41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

duties or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the Division, which shall not
unreasonably be withheld. The agreement transferee must demonstrate compliance with the requirements of the
project. If the Division approves a transfer of the Subgrantee’s obligations, the Subgrantee shall remain Liable
for all work performed and all expenses incurred in connection with this Agreement. In the event the Legislature
transfers the rights, duties and obligations of the Division to another governmental entity, pursuant to Section
20.06, Florida Statutes or otherwise, the rights, duties and obligations under this Agreement shall be
transferred to the succeeding governmental agency as if it was the original party to this Agreement.

Required Procurement Procedures for Obtaining Goods and Services. The Subgrantee shall provide
maximum open competition when procuring goods and services related to the grant-assisted project in
accordance with Section 287.057, Florida Statutes.

a)  Procurement of Goods and Services Not Exceeding $35,000. The Subgrantee must use the
applicable procurement method described below:

1. Purchases Up to $2,500: Procurement of goods and services where individual purchases do not
exceed $2,500 do not require competition and may be conducted at the Subgrantee’s discretion.

2. Purchases or Contract Amounts Between $2,500 and $35,000: Goods and services costing
between $2,500 and $35,000 require informal competition and may be procured by purchase order,
acceptance of vendor proposals or other appropriate procurement document.

b)  Procurement of Goods and Services Exceeding $35,000. Goods and services costing over $35,000
may be procured by either Formal Invitation to Bid, Request for Proposals or Invitation to Negotiate and
may be procured by purchase order, acceptance of vendor proposals or other appropriate procurement
document.

Conflicts of Interest. The Subgrantee hereby certifies that it is cognizant of the prohibition of conflicts of
interest described in Sections 112.311 through 112.326, Florida Statutes and affirms that it will not enter into
or maintain a business or other relationship with any employee of the Department of State that would violate
those provisions. The Subgrantee further agrees to seek authorization from the General Counsel for the
Department of State prior to entering into any business or other relationship with a Department of State
Employee to avoid a potential violation of those statutes.

Binding of Successors. This Agreement shall bind the successors, assigns and legal representatives of the
Subgrantee and of any legal entity that succeeds to the obligations of the Division of Library and Information
Services.

Employment of Unauthorized Aliens. The employment of unauthorized aliens by the Subgrantee is
considered a violation of Section 274A (a) of the Immigration and Nationality Act (8 USC 1324(a)) (as of
September 2019), incorporated by reference. If the Subgrantee knowingly employs unauthorized aliens, such
violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this Agreement.

Severability. If any term or provision of the Agreement is found to be illegal and unenforceable, the remainder
will remain in full force and effect, and such term or provision shall be deemed stricken.

Page: 12



46.

47.

48.

Americans with Disabilities Act. All programs and facilities related to this Agreement must meet the
standards of Sections 553.501 through 553.513, Florida Statutes and the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990 (ada.gov (as of September 2019)), incorporated by reference.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed, performed and enforced in all respects in accordance
with the laws and rules of Florida. Venue or location for any legal action arising under this Agreement will be in
Leon County, Florida.

Entire Agreement. The entire Agreement of the parties consists of the following documents:
a) This Agreement.
b)  Estimated Project Budget (Attachment A).

c)  Florida Single Audit Act Requirements (Attachment B).

Page: 13


https://www.ada.gov/

In acknowledgment of Project Number 21-LSTA-B-06, provided for from funds appropriated in the FY
2021-2022 General Appropriation Act in the amount of $31,100, the Subgrantee hereby certifies that they
have read this entire Agreement and will comply with all of its requirements.

Subgrantee:

By:

Authorized Official for the Subgrantee

Department of State

By:

Amy L. Johnson, Director
Division of Library and Information Services
Department of State, State of Florida

Typed name and title

Date Date
Witness Witness
Date Date

Page: 14



Project Number: 21-LSTA-B-06

Literacy City
ATTACHMENT A
Estimated Project Budget

Description Grant Funds Cash Match  In Kind Match
Salaries & Benefits

Library Manager $0 $16,875 $0

Librarian $0 $5,495 $0

Information Officer $0 $4,750 $0

Webmaster $0 $4,750 $0

Subtotals $0 $31,870 $0
Contractual Services

Phase9 design $10,000 $0 $0

Phase9 printing and production $17,500 $0 $0

Subtotals $27,500 $0 $0
Library Materials

Literacy software, Paper literacy workbooks, LWB history $3,000 $0 $0

items

Subtotals $3,000 $0 $0
Supplies

paper and toner and misc. office supplies $600 $0 $0

Subtotals $600 $0 $0
Totals $31,100 $31,870 $0

Page: 15



ATTACHMENT B
FLORIDA SINGLE AUDIT ACT REQUIREMENTS

AUDIT REQUIREMENTS

The administration of resources awarded by the Department of State to the Subgrantee may be subject to audits
and/or monitoring by the Department of State as described in this Addendum to the Grant Award Agreement.

Monitoring

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements, and
section 215.97, Florida Statutes (F.S.), as revised (see Audits below), monitoring procedures may include, but not
be limited to, on-site visits by Department of State staff, limited scope audits as defined by 2 CFR 2 §200.425, or
other procedures. By entering into this agreement, the recipient agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring
procedures/processes deemed appropriate by the Department of State. In the event the Department of State
determines that a limited scope audit of the recipient is appropriate, the recipient agrees to comply with any additional
instructions provided by the Department of State staff to the recipient regarding such audit. The recipient further
agrees to comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations or audits deemed necessary by the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General.

Audits

Part I: Federally Funded

This part is applicable if the recipient is a state or local government or a nonprofit organization as defined in 2 CFR
§200.90, §200.64, and §200.70.

1. A recipient that expends $750,000 or more in federal awards in its fiscal year must have a single or program-
specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements.
Exhibit 1 to this agreement lists the federal resources awarded through the Department of State by this
agreement. In determining the federal awards expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all sources
of federal awards, including federal resources received from the Department of State. The determination of
amounts of federal awards expended should be in accordance with the guidelines established by 2 CFR
200.502-503. An audit of the recipient conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with the provisions of 2
CFR 200.514, will meet the requirement of this Part.

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the recipient shall fulfill the requirements relative to
auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR 200.508-512.

3. A recipient that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required to have an audit
conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, subpart F - Audit Requirements. If the recipient
expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in
accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, subpart F - Audit Requirements, the cost of the audit must be
paid from non-federal resources (i.e. the cost of such an audit must be paid from recipient resources obtained

Page: 16



from other than federal entities).

Part I1: State Funded

This part is applicable if the recipient is a nonstate entity as defined by section 215.97(2),F.S.

1. In the event that the recipient expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess of
$750,000 in any fiscal year of such recipient (for fiscal years ending June 30, 2017 and thereafter), the recipient
must have a state single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance with Section 215.97, F.S.;
Rule Chapter 691-5 F.A.C., State Financial Assistance; and Chapters Chapters 10.550 (local governmental
entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General. EXHIBIT 1 to this
agreement indicates state financial assistance awarded through the Department of State by this agreement. In
determining the state financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the recipient shall consider all sources of
state financial assistance, including state financial assistance received from the Department of State, other state
agencies, and other nonstate entities. State financial assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through
awards and resources received by a nonstate entity for federal program matching requirements.

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1, the recipient shall ensure that the audit complies
with the requirements of Section 215.97(8), F.S. This includes submission of a financial reporting package as
defined by Section 215.97(2) F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and
for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.

3. If the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for fiscal years ending
June 30, 2017 and thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, F.S., is
not required. In the event that the recipient expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal
year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of Section 215.97, F.S., the cost
of the audit must be paid from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be paid from
the recipient’s resources obtained from other than State entities).

The Internet web addresses listed below will assist recipients in locating documents referenced in the text of this
agreement and the interpretation of compliance issues.

State of Florida Department Financial Services (Chief Financial Officer)
http://www.myfloridacfo.com/

State of Florida Legislature (Statutes, Legislation relating to the Florida Single Audit Act)
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/

Part III: Report Submission

1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit
Requirements, and required by PART I of this agreement shall be submitted, when required by 2 CFR 200.512,
by or on behalf of the recipient directly to each of the following:

A. The Department of State via the DOS Grants System at https://dosgrants.com

Page: 17


http://http//www.myfloridacfo.com/ 
http://www.leg.state.fl.us/
https://dosgrants.com

B. The Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) as provided in 2 CFR 200.6 and section 200.512

The FAC's website prides a data entry system and required forms for submitting the single audit reporting
package. Updates to the location of the FAC and data entry system may be found at the OMB website.

2. Copies of financial reporting packages required by PART II of this agreement shall be submitted by or on behalf
of the recipient directly to each of the following:

A. The Department of State via the DOS Grants System at https:/dosgrants.com

B. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address:

Auditor General

Local Government Audits/342
Claude Pepper Building, Room 401
111 West Madison Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450

1. Any reports, management letter, or other information required to be submitted to the Department of State
pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted timely in accordance with 2 CFR 200.512, section 215.97 F.S. and
Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the
Auditor General, as applicable.

2. Recipients, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Department of State for audits done in
accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements or Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities)
and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should indicate the date that
the reporting package was delivered to the recipient in correspondence accompanying the reporting package.

Part IV: Record Retention

1. The recipient shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the award(s) and this
agreement through June 30, 2029, and shall allow the Department of State, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor
General access to such records upon request. The recipient shall ensure that audit working papers are made
available to the Department of State, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General upon request for a period of
at least three years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing by the Department of
State.

Page: 18


https://dosgrants.com

EXHIBIT -1

FEDERAL RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

Florida Department of State, Library Services and Technology Act Grant
CFDA Number 45.310
Award amount: $31,100

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO THE FEDERAL RESOURCES
AWARDED PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Code of Federal Regulations, Title 2 Grants and Agreements, Revised January 1, 2014
(2CFR 2)

STATE RESOURCES AWARDED TO THE RECIPIENT
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

MATCHING RESOURCES FOR FEDERAL PROGRAMS:

If a project requests less than $10,000 ($0-$9,999) in grant funds, no matching funds are required. All other projects
must provide local matching funds that equal a minimum of one-third (1/3) of the amount of federal funds requested
or awarded. A library in a county or community with rural status may request a waiver of the match requirements at
the time of the grant application in compliance with Section 288.06561, Florida Statutes. Statewide projects
coordinated by the Division may have the matching requirement waived.

Local matching funds may be in-kind or cash contributions. Expenditure of funds by partners on project-related
activities may be used as match. The expenditures must be documented and reported. Local matching funds may not
be used on more than one project. Matching funds must be related specifically to the project. Matching fund
expenditures may only be made during the project period. Funds expended before or after the project period may not
be used as match.

The following may not be used as match for grants: Other federal grant funds, volunteer time.
SUBJECT TO SECTION 215.97, FLORIDA STATUTES:
Not applicable

COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO STATE RESOURCES AWARDED
PURSUANT TO THIS AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Not applicable

LSTA Grant Agreement (Form DLIS/LSTAO1)
Chapter 1B-2.011(2)(d), Florida Administrative Code, effective 03-2020

Page: 19



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Internal Audit

TITLE:
Accept and Approve the Parking Revenue Audit Report

SUMMARY:

In accordance with the Internal Audit Department’s 2021 Annual Audit Plan, an audit of the
Finance Department and Leisure Services Department’'s Parking Revenue Collection and
Recognition Process has been completed. During the month of September 2021, the City’s
Internal Auditor distributed and reviewed the report with each member of the City Commission.
The report was previously reviewed by the client department and the Interim City Manager. A
follow-up audit will be conducted to ensure audit recommendations are implemented.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:
N/A

MOTION:

Move to accept and approve the Parking Revenue Audit Report.

ATTACHMENT(S):
Fiscal Impact Analysis — N/A



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2021-13 and Ordinance No. 2021-14 — Second Reading — amending the Future
Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment (Ordinance 2021-13) and the Zoning Map (Ordinance 2021-
14) on behalf of the PBC School District as follows: (1) a FLUM amendment from the Single
Family Residential (SFR) FLU to the Public (P) FLU; and (2) a rezoning from the Single-Family
Residential (SF-R) zoning district to the Public (P) zoning district on properties located at 1509
Barton Road, 1511 Barton Road, 1515 Barton Road, and 1421 Barton Road

SUMMARY:

The proposed City-initiated FLUM amendment would amend the FLU designation for
approximately 3.71 acres (4 subject properties) from the Single Family Residential (SFR) FLU
to the Public (P) FLU. The proposed concurrent rezoning request would amend the zoning
district on the subject properties from the Single-Family Residential (SF-R) district to the Public
(P) district. The proposed map amendments would recognize the existing educational uses and
to provide for greater flexibility with regards to future educational use of the site.

The proposed FLUM amendment is eligible for processing as a small-scale future land use map
amendment per F.S. 163.3187. If adopted, the proposed amendment would be transmitted to
the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) upon adoption and become effective
31 days after adoption if not challenged within 30 days.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The proposed FLUM and Zoning Map amendments are for property owned by the School District
of Palm Beach County that were previously used as an alternative school from 2006 until 2020
called the South Intensive Transition School. The site is proposed to be used as the
headquarters for the Education Foundation as well as provide a training facility and a Red Apple
supply site that furnishes teachers with needed educational materials. Uses at the site would
include educational training, office, and the storage of educational materials.

The staff report was prepared in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 163 of the Florida
Statutes, and provides the required, relevant and appropriate data based the City’s community
goals and vision and consistency with level of service requirements. The amendment is
supported by and is consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the Land Development
Regulations, and Strategic Plan as described in the data and analysis contained in the attached
advisory board staff report.

The Planning & Zoning Board (PZB) unanimously voted to recommend approval of the proposed
future land use map amendment and zoning map amendment to the City Commission at their
September 1, 2021 meeting.

The City Commission unanimously voted to approve the proposed future land use map
amendment and zoning map amendment on first reading at their October 19, 2021 meeting.



MOTION:
Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2021-13 and Ordinance 2021-14 on second reading.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Ordinance 2021-13
Ordinance 2021-14
Combined PZB Staff Report FLU & Rezoning



2021-13

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-13 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH
BEACH, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY’S COMPREHENSIVE
PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP THROUGH A SMALL SCALE
MAP AMENDMENT FROM THE FUTURE LAND USE (FLU)
DESIGNATION OF SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (SFR) TO
THE PUBLIC (P) FLU DESIGNATION ON PROPERTIES
GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF
BARTON ROAD AND 16™ AVE SOUTH AT 1509 BARTON
ROAD, 1511 BARTON ROAD, 1515 BARTON ROAD, AND 1421
BARTON ROAD AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A;
PROVIDING THAT CONFLICTING ORDINANCES ARE
REPEALED; PROVIDING FOR  SEVERABILITY; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Florida Local Government Comprehensive Planning and
Land Development Regulation Act, section 163.3220, et seq., Florida Statutes,
requires each municipality to adopt a comprehensive plan, including a future land
use map and authorizes amendments to an adopted comprehensive plan; and

WHEREAS, this is a City-initiated request for the four (4) properties on
behalf of the Palm Beach County School District described in Exhibit A (the
“Property”) attached hereto and incorporated herein, for a small-scale map
amendment to change the future land use designation of the property; and

WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and reviewed an amendment to the
Future Land Use Map of the City’s Comprehensive Plan to change the land use
designations of the property described below from a City of Lake Worth Beach
future land use designation of Single Family Residential (SFR) to a City future
land use designation of Public (P); and

WHEREAS, on September 1, 2021, the City Planning and Zoning Board,
sitting as the duly constituted Local Planning Agency for the City, recommended
approval of the Future Land Use Map Amendment to the Comprehensive Plan of
the City; and

WHEREAS, the amendment qualifies and meets the criteria to be
reviewed and approved as a small scale map amendment in accordance with
section 163.3187, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission acknowledges that this Future Land Use
Map Amendment is subject to the provisions of Section 163.3187, and 163.3189,
Florida Statutes, and that the City shall maintain compliance with all provisions
thereof; and

WHEREAS, the City has received public input and participation through
hearings before the Local Planning Agency and the City Commission in
accordance with Section 163.3181, Florida Statutes; and



Pg. 2, Ord. 2021-13

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that the adoption of this
Ordinance is in the best interest of the citizens and residents of the City of Lake
Worth Beach.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and ratified.

Section 2. The property of land more particularly described in Exhibit A is
hereby designated Public (P) on the City’s Future Land Use Map in Exhibit B.

Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed.

Section 4. If any provision of this ordinance, or the application thereof to any
person or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other
provisions or applications of the ordinance which can be given effect without the
invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance
are declared severable,

Section 5. The effective date of this small scale map amendment shall be thirty-
one (31) days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies the City that
the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this amendment
does not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or the
Administration Commission enters a final order determining the adopted
amendment to be in compliance..

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Vice Mayor
Robinson, seconded by Commissioner Malega, and upon being put to a vote, the
vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch AYE
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson AYE
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE
Commissioner Christopher McVoy AYE
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading
on the 19" of October, 2021.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
Commissioner , seconded by Commissioner , as
amended and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch



Pg. 3, Ord. 2021-13

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the __ day
of , 2021.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:
Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk



Exhibit A
Property Location

The subject four (4) parcels are generally located at the northwest corner of Barton Road
and 16™ Avenue South (1509 Barton Road, 1511 Barton Road, 1515 Barton Road, AND
1421 Barton Road) as depicted in the map below and include the following property control
numbers: 38-43-44-33-13-010-0020, 38-43-44-33-13-010-0030, 38-43-44-33-13-011-
0020, and 38-43-44-33-13-011-0040




Exhibit B

Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment
From: Single Family Residential (SFR)
To: Public (P) Future Land Use Designation

Proposed Future Land Use 7

City of Lake Worth Beach, FL

Seaboard Coast Line
' ' ' ) ' )

Map Legend
Single Family Residential (SFR)
Medium Density Residential (MDR )

Public (P}

M
[
¥
"".
Gl

ah

g I
.

{4

5 TropiééI‘D

HERN

‘.

1

.l-..r'-ﬂ | J, ‘~

“Tropical|Dri

16thfAve St

“NiRidgeiRdf

)

Andrew. ReddingiRd

l,._.,_..-“_“_“.!.-l._“_"-“."-.!"‘-“"ll'!ll.ll!!.l-u-n-n-r [LLT TTT TS

¢

AT

o

)
2

Municipal Boundary

: Project Area

=W

Y

0 130 260 520
Feet A

N

Created: July®, 2021
Source: Cityof Lake Worth Beach




O oYU WN B

AN DAEDRADEDWWWWWWWWWWNNNNNNNNNNRRPRRPRRERRRPR
O U BWNRPOOVLOINOOUDNWNPRPROOVLOMNNOOTUBRNRWNRPROLONOOTUD WNPRO

2021-14

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-14 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, AMENDING THE CITY’S OFFICIAL ZONING MAP FROM THE
ZONING DISTRICT OF SINGLE FAMILY — RESIDENTIAL (SF-R) TO
PUBLIC (P) ON PROPERTIES GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE
NORTHWEST CORNER OF BARTON ROAD AND 16TH AVE SOUTH AT
1509 BARTON ROAD, 1511 BARTON ROAD, 1515 BARTON ROAD,
AND 1421 BARTON ROAD, AND AS MORE PARTICULARLY
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT A; AND PROVIDED FOR SEVERABILITY,
CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida,
pursuant to the authority granted in Chapters 163 and 166, Florida Statutes, and the Land
Development Regulations, as adopted by the City of Lake Worth Beach, is authorized
and empowered to consider amending the City’s Official Zoning Map; and

WHEREAS, this is a City-initiated request for a zoning map amendment to change
the zoning district of the properties as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached
hereto and incorporated herein by reference (the “Property”); and

WHEREAS, City staff has prepared and reviewed an amendment to the City’s
Official Zoning Map to change the zoning district of the properties described below from
Single Family — Residential (SF-R) to Public (P), pursuant to the City of Lake Worth Beach
Land Development Regulations and Comprehensive Plan; and

WHEREAS, on September 1, 2020, the City Planning and Zoning Board, sitting as
the duly constituted Local Planning Agency for the City, considered a concurrent future
land use map (FLUM) amendment to the P future land use;

WHEREAS, on September 1, 2020, the City Planning and Zoning Board, sitting as
the duly constituted Local Planning Agency for the City, recommended approval of the
subject zoning map amendment to the City’s Official Zoning Map; and

WHEREAS, the City has received public input and participation through hearings
before the Local Planning Agency and the City Commission in accordance with Section
163.3181, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and evidence
and has determined that rezoning meets the rezoning review criteria of the Land
Development Regulations, Section 23.2-36 and is consistent with the City’s
Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan.

WHEREAS, the City Commission has considered all of the testimony and evidence
and has determined that the adoption of this ordinance is in the best interest of the citizens
and residents of the City of Lake Worth Beach.



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94

Pg. 2, Ord. 2021-14

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY
OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1.  The foregoing recitals are hereby affirmed and ratified.

Section 2. The parcel of land more particularly described in Exhibit A is hereby
designated Public (P) on the City’s Official Zoning Map.

Section 3. The City’s zoning maps shall be updated to reflect the changes to the
property described in Exhibit B.

Section 4. Repeal of Laws in Conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict
herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 5.  Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof is
held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalidity shall not affect other
provisions of the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application, and to this end the provisions of this ordinance are declared severable.

Section 6.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective upon the same day
as the concurrent Future Land Use Map amendment (Ordinance 2021-13). Per Florida
Statute 163.3187. The Future Land Use Map amendment (Ordinance 2021-13) shall be
effective 31 days after adoption provided there is no challenge.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner
Malega, seconded by Vice Mayor Robinson and upon being put to a vote, the vote was
as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch AYE
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson AYE
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE
Commissioner Christopher McVoy AYE
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
9t day of October, 2021.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,

the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes



95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109

Pg. 3, Ord. 2021-14

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day

of , 2021.

ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Betty Resch, Mayor



110 Exhibit A
111 Property Location

112 Property Location: The subject four (4) parcels are generally located at the northwest
113 corner of Barton Road and 16™ Avenue South as depicted in the map below and include
114  the following property control numbers: 38-43-44-33-13-010-0020, 38-43-44-33-13-010-
115 0030, 38-43-44-33-13-011-0020, and 38-43-44-33-13-011-0040.

116



117 Exhibit B
118 Amended Zoning District

119 Single Family Residential (SF-R) to Public (P) Zoning District

Proposed Zoning Classification
City of Lake Worth Beach, FL

+E AN
VERNSL T am ey
V- ‘it - {

5

3 Tropicai D
Barton|Rd

TathJAvel SRS

E |
r [ o] e
l a8 *g
| 8 l%:
m‘ ) e -
o) o
i o
ﬁ % 1 k] ‘—g L 7
B e =
i 3 0N Bl
o\ . &
ns ) 4
= N
- - =] 16thfAvelS
| =
B o
r 6)
1 ' g o
Wk &
B o © =
(] ! g
| o 7}
3= o
x E
3 2
! | : =
7 <
.-'lr.-,flll!ll-Il.lll"lll-ll-@‘-lln. Il-ll-::;-ll'-ll-’ll.- :’l‘l-‘
I '!l-ll-ll-ll-ll-il-!l-ll-ll-ll-ll-ll-ﬂl.'..'-...-..-“!"‘-u-.l-ll." (A ey
¢ » : ®
Z
o y = W
. m
Map Legend 0 130 260 52?: t
ee
Mobile Home Residential, 7 du/net acre (MH-7) Municipal Boundary
y N
[ Public(P) [ Project Area

[ Single-Family and Two-Family Residential (SF-TF-14) :] barcel Bound
[ ] Single Family Residential (SFR) arcel Bouncary

Created: Julyé, 2021
Source: Cityof Lake Worth Beach




c:’ty of DEPARTMENT FOR COM ITY SUSTAINABILITY

Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division

— Iéaelé%rv‘vorth 1900 2NP Avenue North
Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

FLORIDA 561-586-1687

PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001: City-initiated small-scale Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment
and Zoning Map amendment (rezoning) on behalf of the PBC School District requesting:

e a FLUM amendment from the Single Family Residential (SFR) FLU to the Public (P) FLU, and

e arezoning from the Single-Family Residential (SF-R) zoning district to the Public (P) zoning district
on properties located at 1509 Barton Road, 1511 Barton Road, 1515 Barton Road, and 1421 Barton Road.

Transmittal Date: August 25, 2021
Meeting Date: September 1, 2021

Property Owner: School Board of Palm Beach
County

Address: 1421 Barton Road, 1515 Barton
Road, 1511 Barton Road, & 1509 Barton Road

PCN: 38-43-44-33-13-010-0020, 38-43-44-33-
13-010-0030, 38-43-44-33-13-011-0020, and
38-43-44-33-13-011-0040

Size: 3.71 acres

General Location Northwest corner of Barton
Road and 16th Ave South (aka Barton Rd),
west of Tropical Drive, south of 14th Ave
South, north of Barton Elementary School

Existing Land Use: Public School and
Educational Uses

Current Future Land Use Designation: Single
Family Residential (SFR)

Proposed Future Land Use Designation:
Public (P)

Current Zoning District: Single Family
Residential (SF-R)

Proposed Concurrent Zoning District: Public

(P)

Report Created and Reviewed by the Department for Community Sustainability
Project Contact: Erin Sita, AICP, Assistant Director | esita@ LakeWorthBeachFl.gov | 561.586.1617



PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |2

RECOMMENDATION ‘

The data and analysis in support of the proposed FLUM amendment was prepared in accordance with F.S. 163.3177. The
proposed FLUM amendment is consistent with the purpose, intent, and requirements of the Comprehensive Plan,
including the level of service requirements and the Strategic Plan. Therefore, staff recommends that the Planning and
Zoning Board recommend to the City Commission to adopt the proposed small scale FLUM amendment (PZB/HRPB 21-
00300001).

The proposed rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, and the guidelines and standards found
in the City of Lake Worth Beach Land Development Regulations (LDRs). Therefore, staff recommends that the Planning
and Zoning Board recommend to the City Commission to approve the proposed rezoning request (PZB/HRPB 21-
01300001).

PROJECT DESCRIPTION ‘

The proposed City-initiated FLUM amendment would amend the FLU designation for approximately 3.71 acres (4 subject
properties) from the Single Family Residential (SFR) FLU to the Public (P) FLU. The proposed concurrent rezoning request
would amend the zoning district on the subject properties from the Single-Family Residential (SF-R) district to the Public
(P) district. The proposed map amendments would recognize the existing educational uses and to provide for greater
flexibility with regards to future educational use of the site. Furthermore, the amendments are supported by and are
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and City Strategic Plan as described in the respective Comprehensive Plan and
Strategic Plan Analysis sections of this report for each request.

The data and analysis section of this staff report for the FLUM amendment was prepared in accordance with the
requirements of F.S. 163.3177 and provides relevant and appropriate data based the City’s community goals and vision
and consistency with level of service requirements. The proposed FLUM amendment is eligible for processing as a small-
scale future land use map amendment per F.S5.163.3187. If adopted, the proposed amendment would be sent to the
Florida Department of Economic Opportunity (DEO) upon adoption and become effective 31 days after adoption if not
challenged within the 30 days.

The data and analysis section of this staff report for the concurrent Zoning Map amendment analyzes the proposed
request for consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Strategic Plan, and LDR Section 23.2-36(4): Review Criteria
for the Rezoning of Land.

| COMMUNITY OUTREACH |

Staff has not received letters of support or opposition for this application.

| BACKGROUND |

The proposed FLUM and Zoning Map amendments include four (4) parcels owned by the School District of Palm Beach County
that were used as a school, and are proposed to be used for educational training, office and storage of educational materials.
Three of the subject parcels were acquired by the School District of Palm Beach County in 1996, with the northernmost parcel
(38-43-44-33-13-010-0020) purchased in 2005. Most of the site was used for the South Intensive Transition School from 2006
until 2020. The alternative school served students in grades 6 through 12 with focused educational programs to help foster
academic success. The school has since moved to a new location in Boynton Beach.



PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |3

The subject properties will be utilized as the headquarters for the Education Foundation as well as provide a training facility
and a Red Apple supply site that furnishes teachers with needed educational materials. The following describes the
Foundation in more detail and is from the Education Foundation website:

"Established in 1984 by Palm Beach County business leaders, the Education Foundation serves as the philanthropic support
organization for K-12 public education and partners closely with the School District of Palm Beach County and the greater
business and charitable community to fund programs that close achievement gaps in learning and that create positive,
measurable change for students. This is accomplished by using the funding to provide innovative classroom grants as well
as providing quality professional development to foster excellence in teaching.

Through a unique matching grant program, the Education Foundation works with corporate and private investors to fund
innovative projects and curriculum that improve literacy and grade-level performance, increase graduation rates, support
STEM and career academies and target support to low-performing students and schools.

Children succeed in school when they have all the tools, resources and support they need in order to achieve. That is why
the Red Apple Supplies (RAS) program was created as a free school supply store that serves the highest-needs Title | Schools
throughout Palm Beach County. RAS is the signature program of the Education Foundation. Since opening the doors to RAS
only 3 years ago (in 2016), over $1 million in free school supplies have been provided to teachers and students throughout
Palm Beach County."

FUTURE LAND USE MAP (FLUM) AMENDMENT ANALYSIS

The proposed Public (P) FLU for the subject properties is compatible with the residential and Public FLU designations of
surrounding properties. The following outlines the FLU designations for the adjacent areas:

e Future Land Use Map amendment for approximately 3.71 acres (4 properties) from Single Family Residential (SFR)
to Public (P)

Subject

Property  Adjacent Direction Adjacent Future Land Use Existing Use
FLU
Single North Single Family Residential Single Family
Family
Residential

Single South Public Barton Elementary School
Family
Residential

Single East Medium Residential Multifamily
Family
Residential

Single West Single Family Residential Single Family
Family
Residential

The Public FLU designation allows for areas specifically used for public schools and, in conjunction with the implementing
Public zoning district, provides for various related office and institutional uses. The amendment provides the site to be
used as headquarters for the Education Foundation as well as provide training facilities and a Red Apple supply site that
furnishes teachers with needed educational materials. Use of this site as described will help the City of Lake Worth Beach



PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001

Page |

4

achieve educational and employment goals enumerated in its Strategic Plan and is consistent with the Comprehensive

Plan.

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan

The proposed FLUM amendments are consistent and in support of the following associated Objectives and Policies of

the City of Lake Worth Beach’s Comprehensive Plan. The underlined text emphasizes key concepts, strategies and

objectives within these objectives and policies that are furthered by the subject amendments.

1. FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT

Objective 1.2.2:

Policy 1.1.2.13:

Objective 1.3.4:

2. EDUCATION ELEMENT

Goal 10.1:

OBJECTIVE 10.1.4:

Policy 10.1.4.2:

The City shall facilitate a compact, sustainable urban development pattern that provides
opportunities to more efficiently use and develop infrastructure, land and other resources
and services, and to reduce dependence on the automobile. This can be accomplished by
concentrating more intensive growth within the City’s mixed use, high density residential
and transit oriented development (TOD) areas.

Locational Criteria for the Public and Public Recreation and Open Designations

The Public and Public Recreation and Open Space land use designations are mapped on sites
where such uses already exist. The mapping of these uses on these sites indicates that no
alternative use of these sites should be established without a properly considered and
enacted Future Land Use Map amendment. Public school sites have been delineated in
areas proximate to residential land. Lands contiguous to school sites which are owned by
the School Board, and proposed for school expansion are intended to be included in this
category. The City retains the right to impose reasonable site planning standards when
existing schools are proposed for expansion or new school sites are developed. Schools are
allowed in all zoning districts except Industrial.

To coordinate future land uses with availability of facilities and services.

Advocate for the educational needs of the citizens of Lake Worth by fostering and
further developing relationships between the City, Non-Profit partners, Colleges and
Universities, Government Entities and the School District of Palm Beach County (the
District).

The City shall work to promote an approach to education that is coordinated with
ancillary facilities such as: parks, libraries, recreational facilities, and Non-profit
agencies.

The City shall encourage the location and development of facilities such as university
campuses, testing centers, private educational facilities, satellite educational programs,
magnet facilities, teaching universities, and technical centers that will enhance the
educational opportunities in Lake Worth for children and adults alike. These public and
private facilities shall be located in areas that meet the location criteria and site
development conditions adopted in the Land Development Regulations.




PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |5

3. HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOODS ELEMENT

Policy 3.3.1.7:

Strengthen the positive attributes and distinctive character of each neighborhood to
help sustain Lake Worth as a healthy, vital City.

e Strengthen the sense of place in each neighborhood with adequate and well-
designed, public facilities such as libraries, schools, recreation centers, fire stations
and streetscapes.

e Continue to support public art and historic preservation as a focus for
neighborhood identity and pride.

e Recognize that every neighborhood has assets that identify that neighborhood and
contribute to the well-being of the people who live there. Understand what those
are and look for opportunities to enhance them and leverage them for
neighborhood improvement. Assets include trees, large yards, schools, people and
independent businesses.

e The physical layout of a neighborhood should encourage walking, bicycling and
transit use, be safe, family friendly, usable by people of all ages, encourage
interaction between people and be a sense of pride.

e Recognize that there are different development patterns. They have been defined
generally as: urban, traditional, suburban, contemporary and rural. Each has
sustainability standards that must be used.

e Accommodate the City’s existing and future housing needs through maintenance
of existing residential neighborhoods and the creation of new residential
neighborhoods.

e Relate new buildings to the context of the neighborhood and community.

e Where a fine-grained development pattern exists, build within the existing street,
block, and lot configuration of the neighborhood.

4. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ELEMENT

Policy 11.1.7.1:

The City shall encourage education and training institutions to provide education and
research programs that meet the needs of targeted cluster industries, and encourage
supplemental education to support existing businesses and programs to stimulate new
business development.

Consistency with the Strategic Plan

The proposed amendments further the City’s Strategic Plan that is committed to building a vibrant and diverse economy,
planning thoughtfully for the future, and support the Strategic Pillars of Positioning Lake Worth Beach to be a competitive
viable location of choice, Strengthening Lake Worth Beach as a “Community of Neighborhoods”, and Navigating towards

a sustainable community.



—

PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |6

Specifically, the proposed amendments are consistent with the following Strategic Plan Pillars:

Pillar I: Positioning Lake Worth Beach to be a competitive viable location of choice
A: Ensure effective economic development incentives and zones
E: Provide superior public amenities and services to retain existing and entice new residents and businesses

Pillar 1I: Strengthening Lake Worth Beach as a ‘Community of Neighborhoods’
F: Collaborate with schools to foster rich, diverse and culturally enriching educational opportunities for all.

Pillar IV: Navigating Towards a Sustainable Community
D: Influence the supply and expansion of jobs.

E: Ensure facility placement, construction and development that anticipates and embraces the future.

Level of Service Analysis

Pursuant to Chapter 163 of the Florida Statutes, any FLU amendment must be evaluated to determine if the proposed
future land use will have a significant impact on the long range level of service (LOS) for public facilities (i.e. drainage,
potable water, wastewater, solid waste, parks, schools, and traffic) that service the property and the surrounding area.
The LOS for public facilities is analyzed based on the maximum development potential for the existing and proposed FLU,
and whether or not each public facility has capacity to accommodate any additional demands.

According to the City’s Comprehensive Plan, the maximum development potential change is for the existing Single Family
Residential FLU at 7 du/acre to the proposed Public FLU at 0 du/acre resulting in a decrease of 7 du/acre. Public FLU
generates less service demands than Single Family Residential FLU. Analysis of the decreased density (7 du/acre to 0
du/acre= 0 du/acre) on the long range Level of Service (LOS) impacts concluded community facilities and services are
available in the area to sustain the future demands and long range LOS can be met with current and planned system
capacities. The decrease from 7 du/acre to 0 du/ac results in a decrease of facilities and services needed (at an average
household size of 2.53 people per household per Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Data and Analysis). Public FLU
generates less service demands than Single Family Residential FLU. The following table provides a LOS summary.

FLUM AMENDMENT LOS SUMMARY TABLE

Existing FLU Designations:

(at 7 du/acre for Single Family Proposed FLU Designations:
Type of Facility: Residential) (at 0 du/acre for Public)
3-year, 1-hour storm duration
Drainage 3-year, 1-hour storm duration, as
i recorded in the FDOT Drainage Manual Both FLU designations meet the 3 yr. — 1 hr.
IDF curves, current edition and fully drainage LOS requirements. Site improvements
contained onsite. may be required to provide drainage collection
and conveyance systems to positive outfall.
105 gpcd x 60 du/acre x 2.53 pph =0
Decrease of 1,860 gpcpd
105 gpcpd (gallons per capita per day).
Public use generates less demand than single
Potable Water 105 gpcd x 7 du/acre x 2.53 pph =1,860 family residential development
gpcpd
The City facilities have available capacity to
accommodate the decreased demand.




—

PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |7

Existing FLU Designations:

(at 7 du/acre for Single Family Proposed FLU Designations:
Type of Facility: Residential) (at 0 du/acre for Public)
Collection and treatment of 100 gallons 100 gpcd x 0 du/acre x2.53 pph =0
per capita per day at secondary treatment Decrease of 1,771 gpcpd
Sanitary Sewer level, or 250 gallons per ERU per day. Public use generates less demand than single
family residential development
100 gpcd x 7 du/acre x 2.53 pph =1,771 The City facilities have available capacity to
gpcpd accommodate the decreased demand.
Solid waste pickup will be located on the property
Collection and disposal of 6.5 pounds of and is substantially less than the potential impacts
solid waste per capita per day. of residential development.
Solid Waste 6.5 lbs/pcd x 7 du/acre x 2.53 pph x 365 The Solid Waste Authority has available capacity
days/year / 2,000 = to accommodate the demand of the proposed
21 Tons/year facility.
2.5 acres of community parks for every
1,000 persons and 2.0 acres of 3.71 aces x 0 du/ac = 0 du/ac x 2.53 pph/du =0
neighborhood parks for every 1,000 persons
Parks persons Decrease of 26 du = decrease of 66 persons
3.71 aces x 7 du/ac = 26 du/ac x 2.53
pph/du = 66 persons
0 du/acrex3.71ac=0du
7 du/acre x 3.71 ac= 26 du Decrease of 26 du
Schools
School District to determine impact of decreased
units; School Capacity Availability Determination
S7iacexTduocre=dsdy | PSS B s daly o e
26 du x 10 daily trips* =260 ¥ P
. . . LOSD
Traffic Daily Trips -
LOS D Decrease of daily trips
* ITE 10th Edition Trip Generation Rates Capacity is available to accommodate the
decreased demand.

| ZONING MAP AMENDMENT ANALYSIS |

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan

The subject properties currently have a Future Land Use (FLU) designation of Single-Family Residential (SFR). Per
Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Element Policy 1.1.1.2, the SFR land use category “is intended primarily to permit
development of single-family structures at a maximum of 7 dwelling units per acre.” The implementing zoning districts
of the SFR FLU are Single-Family — Residential (SF-R), Mobile Home Residential (MH-7), and Neighborhood Commercial
(NC). The properties’ use by the School District of Palm Beach County as an educational site with offices is not consistent
with the current SF-R zoning district. The intention is to change the zoning district of the properties from SFR to Public
(P) with a concurrent FLUM change from the current SFR future land use to Public (P) future land use (FLU) to better
reflect the use of the site. Approval of the rezoning request would allow the School District to improve the site while
being consistent with the intent of the requested zoning district and future land use designation.




PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |8

Additionally, the proposed changes to the properties’ Zoning District and FLU Designation is consistent with Future Land
Use Element Policy 1.1.2.13 (Locational Criteria for the Public and Public Recreation and Open Designations) as this
site is adjacent to residential uses to the north, east and west. Future Land Use Element Goal 1.2 states: “To strive to
foster the City of Lake Worth as a livable community where live, work, play and learn become part of the daily life of
residents and visitors.” Approval of the rezoning request would allow for a continuation of a co-located education
complex with Barton Elementary School and would be in keeping with the intent of Goal 1.2.

Furthermore, the Education Element Policy 10.1.4.2 provides for encouragement of the location and development of
educational facilities that will enhance the educational opportunities in Lake Worth Beach.

The City’s Strategic Plan sets goals and ideals for the City’s future vision and lays out methods to achieve them. Pillar
Two, Section F seeks to “Collaborate with schools to foster rich, diverse and culturally enriching educational opportunities
for all”. Approval of the rezoning will result in the continued educational use of the site as well as opportunities to expand
in concert with the permitted uses under the Public Zoning District. These expansions will allow for more diverse
programs that can be implemented on site and in keeping with the City’s Strategic Plan. Additionally, the proposal, if
approved, would be consistent with Strategic Plan Pillar I. A and E ensuring effective economic development and superior
public amenities and services, and Strategic Plan Pillar IV. D and E influencing the supply and expansion of jobs, and
ensuring facilities that anticipate and embrace the future.

Consistency with the City’s Land Development Requlations

Rezoning of the subject site will reflect the current educational use of the property and allow for future educational
development of the property. Although public schools are allowed, subject to conditional use approval, in both P and
SFR zoning districts, there is more flexibility with the P zoning districts that would allow for accessory uses integral to the
educational use (e.g. educational office and storage uses). The property is adjacent to residential uses on the north, east
and west sides and would be subject to the development regulations for sites adjacent to residentially zoned lands
(Section 23.3-26.c.1-5).

The LDRs also require all rezoning requests with a concurrent Future Land Use Map (FLUM) Amendment be analyzed for
consistency with the review criteria in Section 23.2-36(4). Staff’s full analysis of the review criteria is provided below.
The analysis demonstrates that the proposed rezoning complies with the review criteria and that the required findings
can be made in support of the rezoning.

Section 23.2-36(4): Review Criteria for the Rezoning of Land

The Department of Community Sustainability is tasked in the Code to review rezoning applications for consistency with
the findings for granting rezoning applications in LDR Section 23.2-36 and to provide a recommendation for whether the
application should be approved, approved with conditions, or denied.

At the hearing on the application, the Planning and Zoning Board or Historic Resources Preservation Board shall consider
the rezoning/FLUM amendment application and request, the staff report including recommendations of staff, and shall
receive testimony and information from the petitioner, the owner, city staff, and public comment. At the conclusion of
the hearing, the Board shall make a recommendation on the rezoning/FLUM amendment request to the City Commission.

The land development regulations require all rezoning requests with a concurrent FLUM Amendment be analyzed for
consistency with Section 23.2-36(4). Staff has reviewed the rezoning against this section and has determined that the
rezoning complies with the following review criteria:

a. Consistency: Whether the proposed rezoning amendment would be consistent with the purpose and intent of the
applicable comprehensive plan policies, redevelopment plans, and land development regulations. Approvals of a request



PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |9

to rezone to a planned zoning district may include limitations or requirements imposed on the master plan in order to
maintain such consistency.

Analysis: If the FLUM amendment and the rezoning are approved, the new P zoning district would be consistent with the
purpose and intent of the P FLU designation. The rezoning request furthers the implementation of the City’s
Comprehensive Plan with the proposed adoption of a zoning district that is consistent with the Public future land use (FLU)
designation on the subject sites. Additionally, the existing educational uses on the site are consistent with both the P FLU
designation and P zoning district. Meets Criterion.

b. Land use pattern. \Whether the proposed FLUM amendment would be contrary to the established land use pattern, or
would create an isolated land use classification unrelated to adjacent and nearby classifications, or would constitute a
grant of special privilege to an individual property owner as contrasted with the protection of the public welfare. This
factor is not intended to exclude FLUM amendments that would result in more desirable and sustainable growth for the
community.

Analysis: The rezoning request will not be contrary or incompatible to the established land pattern, nor will it create an
isolated zoning district unrelated to the adjacent and nearby classifications or constitute a grant of special privilege to the
petitioner as contrasted with the protection of the public welfare. The proposed Public zoning district is consistent with
the current and future education uses of the property by the School District of Palm Beach County. Below is a table
outlining the existing zoning and future land use designations of adjacent properties. Meets Criterion.

Subject Adjacent Adjacent Future Land Adjacent Zoning
Property FLU Direction Use Designations Districts Existing Use
Single Family North Single Family Single Family Single Family
Residential Residential (SFR) Residential (SF-R)
Single Family South Public (P) Public (P) Barton Elementary School
Residential
Single Family East Medium Density Single-Family and Multifamily
Residential Residential (MDR) Two-Family
Residential (SF-TF-14)
Single Family West Single Family Residential Single Family Single Family
Residential (SFR) Residential (SFR)

c. Sustainability: Whether the proposed rezoning would support the integration of a mix of land uses consistent with
smart growth or sustainability initiatives, with an emphasis on 1) complementary land uses; 2) access to alternative
modes of transportation; and 3) interconnectivity within the project and between adjacent properties.

Analysis: The rezoning request supports the integration of a mix of land uses consistent with smart growth and
sustainability initiatives with an emphasis on complementary land uses. Approval of the rezoning request would reflect
existing educational land uses of the school and Education Foundation facilities. Further, the proposed rezoning would
allow the City to benefit from increased efficiency and the proximity of educational services on already-developed land
that compliments the existing school use and facilities. The uses immediately surrounding the properties are primarily
single-family residential, multi-family residential, and educational. Institutional uses such as schools are considered
complementary uses in function and nature to residential uses. Approval of the rezoning will allow for continuation of
existing educational related land uses that are complementary to the properties’ surrounding uses. Meets Criterion.

d. Availability of public services/infrastructure: Requests for rezoning to planned zoning districts shall be subject to
review pursuant to section 23.5-2.



PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |10

Analysis: This criterion is only applicable to requests to rezone land to a planned zoning district. As this request seeks
approval to rezone the subject properties to the conventional Public zoning district and not a planned development
district, this criterion does not apply. Criterion not applicable.

e. Compatibility: The application shall consider the following compatibility factors:

1.Whether the proposed FLUM amendment would be compatible with the current and future use of adjacent and
nearby properties, or would negatively affect the property values of adjacent and nearby properties.

Analysis: The proposed Public (P) FLU for the subject properties is compatible with the residential and Public FLU
designations of surrounding properties and will not affect the property values of the neighborhoods. The existing zoning
district of the subject site is not reflective of the current educational use of the site. Rezoning of the subject site and
the land use change to Public will be consistent with the current educational use of the site, allow for future educational
modernization/expansion and be a compliment to the residential uses surrounding the property. Meets Criterion.

f. Direct community sustainability and economic development benefits: For rezoning involving rezoning to a planned
zoning district, the review shall consider the economic benefits of the proposed amendment, specifically, whether the
proposal would:
1. Further implementation of the city's economic development (CED) program;
2. Contribute to the enhancement and diversification of the city's tax base;
3. Respond to the current market demand or community needs or provide services or retail choices not locally
available;
Create new employment opportunities for the residents, with pay at or above the county average hourly wage;
5. Represent innovative methods/technologies, especially those promoting sustainability;
6. Support more efficient and sustainable use of land resources in furtherance of overall community health,
safety and general welfare;
7. Be complementary to existing uses, thus fostering synergy effects; and
Alleviate blight/economic obsolescence of the subject area.

Analysis: The rezoning request does not include rezoning to a planned zoning district nor does it have a concurrent site
plan application in review at this time. As such, this criterion is not applicable. Criterion not applicable.

g. Economic development impact determination for conventional zoning districts: For rezoning to a conventional zoning
district, the review shall consider whether the proposal would further the economic development program, and also
determine whether the proposal would:
A. Represent a potential decrease in the possible intensity of development, given the uses permitted in the
proposed land use category; and

B. Represent a potential decrease in the number of uses with high probable economic development benefits.

Analysis: The proposed rezoning to the P zoning district will not result in a decrease in development intensity or of a public
amenity for the neighborhood. While the P zoning district does not offer an increase in density from the SF-R zoning
district, the education use is consistent with the City’s goal to encourage education and training institutions to provide
education and research programs and support existing businesses and programs to stimulate new business development.
Meets Criterion.



PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |11

h. Commercial and industrial land supply. The review shall consider whether the proposed FLUM amendment would
reduce the amount of land available for commercial/industrial development. If such determination is made, the approval
can be recommended under the following conditions:
1. The size, shape, and/or location of the property makes it unsuitable for commercial/industrial development; or
2. The proposed FLUM amendment provides substantiated evidence of satisfying at least four (4) of the direct
economic development benefits listed in subparagraph "f" above; and
3. The proposed FLUM amendment would result in comparable or higher employment numbers, building size and
valuation than the potential of existing land use designation.

Analysis: If approved, the proposed rezoning will not result in a reduction of land available for commercial and
industrial development. Commercial and industrial uses are not permitted under the existing zoning. Therefore, the
change from SF-R to P zoning district would not reduce or change the commercial and industrial development potential
of the subject properties. Meets Criterion.

i. Alternative sites. Whether there are sites available elsewhere in the city in zoning districts which already allow the
desired use.

Analysis: The purpose of the rezoning request is to reflect the long-standing existing education use on the subject
properties as a Public use. As such the proposed P rezoning is appropriate for the subject properties. Meets Criterion.

j. A Master plan and site plan compliance with land development regulations. When master plan and site plan review
are required pursuant to section 2.D.1.e. above, both shall comply with the requirements of the respective zoning district
regulations of article Il and the site development standards of section 23.2-32.

Analysis: The rezoning request does not require or include a concurrent site plan application. As such, this criterion is
not applicable.

The analysis has shown that the required findings can be made in support of the rezoning. Therefore, the proposed
rezoning is consistent with the review criteria for rezoning as outlined in LDR Section 23.2-36.

CONCLUSION

The proposed FLUM amendment request is consistent with the purpose, intent, and requirements of the Comprehensive
Plan. The proposed rezoning is also consistent with the purpose, intent, and requirements of the Comprehensive Plan
and LDRs. Therefore, staff recommends that the Board recommend approval to the City Commission of both the FLUM
amendment and the Zoning Map amendment based on the data and analysis in this report and the findings summarized
below:

e The amendments are consistent with the City’s goals to encourage the location and development of educational
facilities that will enhance the educational opportunities in Lake Worth for children and adults alike.

e The amendments are consistent with the Strategic Plan’s goals of collaborating with schools to foster rich, diverse
and culturally enriching educational opportunities for all, and of providing superior amenities and services to
retain existing and entice new residents and businesses.

e The amendments are supported by and are consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and City Strategic Plan as
described in the respective Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan Analysis sections of this report; and

e The FLUM amendment is supported by data and analysis prepared in accordance with the requirement of F.S.
163.3177 that provides relevant and appropriate data based the City’s community goals and vision and
consistency with level of service requirements.

e The Zoning Map amendment is consistent with the proposed FLUM amendment.



PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |12

BOARD POTENTIAL MOTION:

| MOVE TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 21-00300001 & 21-01300001 of the proposed
amendments to the Future Land Use Map and the Zoning Map based on the data and analysis in the staff report and the
testimony at the public hearing.

| MOVE TO NOT RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF PZB PROJECT NUMBER 21-00300001 & 21-01300001 of the proposed
amendments to the Future Land Use Map and Zoning Map as the proposal is not consistent with the City’s Comprehensive
Plan and Strategic Plan for the following reasons [Board member please state reasons.]

Consequent Action: The Planning and Zoning Board will be making a recommendation to the City Commission on the
FLUM and Zoning Map amendment requests.

ATTACHMENTS

A.  Current FLU Map of property located at 1509 Barton Road, 1511 Barton Road, 1515 Barton Road, and 1421 Barton
Road (PCN#s 38-43-44-33-13-011-0040, 38-43-44-33-13-011-0020, 38-43-44-33-13-010-0030 and 38-43-44-33-13-
010-0020)

B. Proposed FLU Map of property located at 1509 Barton Road, 1511 Barton Road, 1515 Barton Road, and 1421 Barton
Road (PCN#s 38-43-44-33-13-011-0040, 38-43-44-33-13-011-0020, 38-43-44-33-13-010-0030 and 38-43-44-33-13-
010-0020)

C. Current Zoning Map of property located at 1509 Barton Road, 1511 Barton Road, 1515 Barton Road, and 1421
Barton Road (PCN#s 38-43-44-33-13-011-0040, 38-43-44-33-13-011-0020, 38-43-44-33-13-010-0030 and 38-43-
44-33-13-010-0020)

D. Proposed Zoning Map of property located at 1509 Barton Road, 1511 Barton Road, 1515 Barton Road, and 1421
Barton Road (PCN#s 38-43-44-33-13-011-0040, 38-43-44-33-13-011-0020, 38-43-44-33-13-010-0030 and 38-43-
44-33-13-010-0020)



PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |13

ATTACHMENT A
Current FLU Map of Subject Properties

Current Future Land Use
City of Lake Worth Beach, FL

LR SR o 3 e

P S L

EELARSE

} ] - 14thiAve s
- a Il 1 = 4

. TropicaI‘D
- I: .
BartoniRd

- = -
I Semm

I ”

K .
.

’

" & 4 =
14thfAvelSE Sy

"

¢

BartoniRd.

i o
o

i

16thTA Ve STt

'
_‘Tropical Dri

Seaboard:Coast Line

NiRidgeiRd
Andrew!ReddingiRd

Map Legend

[ Single Family Residential (SFR) : Project Area
[ | Medium Density Residential (MDR)
[ 1 Public(P)

Municipal Boundary

Created: Julyé, 2021
Source: Cityof Lake Worth Beach




—

PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |14

ATTACHMENT B
Proposed FLU Map of Subject Properties

Proposed Future Land Use‘—

City of Lake Worth Beach, FL

{ ]

SRR AN ﬂﬂ; WA
"\"“ 1 T ‘\“\\"“ =
L s Vg2 . |

l‘; '

Tropical|D

4
=
]

.ﬁ' .J\av

A
»
=il
Gl

@
l$ |
;ﬁl‘ L

Tropical{Dr,
b |

16thTA Vel St

NiRidgeiRd
Andrew/ReddingiRd

i"-‘'-''-ll-ll!-Ill-!--|--..-..-..-",,.,,l,'"'"'_""-"‘ll!!.l-u-lm-au-r "
T e
-0
Map Legend 0 130 260 sz?:eet A
D Single Family Residential (SFR) Municipal Boundary ]

Medium Density Residential (MDR)  [__J| Project Area

Public (P)

Created: Julyé, 2021
Source: Cityof Lake Worth Beach




PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |15

ATTACHMENT C
CURRENT ZONING MAP

Current Zoning Classification
City of Lake Worth Beach, FL

s = =

\"?’\ﬂ 3 f ‘\‘\\\1\‘

J.a'

i

> TropicaIiD
-

'v‘-

=

!:1

¥

BartoniRd.

! s

-
-

|

I

.
E
B
E

i ]
3

-

16thfAve’S

mTr‘gpicaI Dr,
o ]

'

'

’ Seaboard:Coast Line

NiRidgeiRd
Andrew/ReddingiRd

Map Legend
[ Mobile Home Residential, 7 du/net acre (MH-T} Municipal Boundary
[ Public (P} [ Project Area

Single-Family and Two-Family Residential (SF-TF-14)
D Parcel Boundary

[ 1 Single Family Residential (SFR)
Created: Julyé, 2021
Source: Cityof Lake Worth Beach




PZB/HRPB 21-00300001 & 21-01300001
Page |16

ATTACHMENT D
PROPOSED ZONING MAP

Proposed Zoning Classification?
City of Lake Worth Beach, FL

SR R T
|

I"qg " %“\ \‘ : ‘}« \.\s Y ‘: i} 5
VERNSR © sapieg) 0E S
J¥ e

b s UB

. =]
ey

[ ] \ ’
i n

14th Ave s

-
Barfon!Rd

:

" Tropical D

a5

¥

T

i
= o]
+4
R 5
[}
g £
o
(:1]

TropicaliDr,

' |

.
e - o
ol TN i
1 A

!

- .-

» >

v
d

16thJAVelSEE

Seaboard: Coast: Line

NiRidgeiRd
Andrew/ReddingiRd

Map Legend
Mobile Home Residential, 7 du/net acre (MH-7) Municipal Boundary
[ Public Py : Project Area
Single-Family and Two-Family Residential {(SF-TF-14)
: ’ : e I:I Parcel Boundary
| Single Family Residential (SFR)

Created: Julyé, 2021
Source: Cityof Lake Worth Beach




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Community Sustainability

TITLE:

Ordinance 2021-09 - First Reading — Deletion of administrative appeals process to the City
Commission for land development decisions

SUMMARY:

Ordinance No. 2021-09 proposes to amend Chapter 26, Land Development Regulations, to
delete the administrative appeal process from final decisions of the Planning & Zoning Board
(PZB) and Historic Resources Preservation Board (HRPB) to the City Commission. If adopted,
all such appeals would proceed directly to the circuit court.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The proposed amendments will remove the administrative appeal requirement for affected
parties and applicants to appeal to the City Commission final decisions of the PZB and HRPB
prior to seeking review in circuit court. If adopted, the ordinance will allow affected parties and
applicants to appeal PZB and HRPB final decisions directly to circuit court, which is the initial
appellate court in challenges to local land development decisions. This will help to streamline
the process for such land development decisions and alleviate the administrative step, time and
expense of going before the City Commission. The proposed ordinance does not delete the
administrative appeal process for challenges of a local development review officer’s decision to
PZB or HRPB.

The PZB unanimously recommended approval to the City Commission of Ordinance 2021-09
at their October 6, 2021 meeting.

The HRPB unanimously recommended approval to the City Commission of Ordinance 2021-09
at their October 13, 2021 meeting.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2021-09 on first reading and schedule the second
reading and public hearing for December 7, 2021.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact — N/A
Ordinance 2021-09



oOoNOOUL A WN PR

2021-09

ORDINANCE 2021-09 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH
BEACH, FLORIDA, REMOVING THE CITY COMMISSION AS THE
ADMINISTRATIVE APPELLATE AUTHORITY FOR LAND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATION DECISIONS MADE BY THE HISTORIC RESOURCES
PRESERVATION BOARD AND PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD BY
AMENDING CHAPTER 23 “LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS,” ARTICLE
2, “ADMINISTRATION,” DIVISION 1, “SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,”
DIVISION 1, “DECISIONMAKERS,” SECTIONS 23.2-1, 23.2-7, 23.2-8, AND
23.2-9; DIVISION 2, “PROCEDURES,” SECTIONS 23.2-15, 23.2-16, AND 23.2-
17; DIVISION 3, “PERMITS,” SECTIONS 23.2-27, 23.2-29, 23.2-30; ARTICLE 5,
“SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS,” SECTION 23.5-1 AND 23.5-4,
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, THE REPEAL OF LAWS IN CONFLICT,
CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) is a duly constituted
municipality having such power and authority conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution and
Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the power and authority conferred by Chapter 163, Florida
Statutes, the City has enacted Land Development Regulations (‘LDRs”) to promote the public
health, safety and welfare through reasonable regulation of land development activity; and

WHEREAS, in section 23.2-7 of the LDRs, the City has established the City of Lake Worth
Beach Historic Resources Preservation Board (“HRPB”), and has conferred upon the HRPB both
advisory duties and final decision-making authority with respect to historic designations,
certificates of appropriateness, and other permit applications under the LDRs within the City’s
historic districts; and

WHEREAS, in section 23.2-8 of the LDRs, the City has established the City of Lake Worth
Beach Planning and Zoning Board (“PZB”) as the local planning agency, and has conferred upon
the PZB both advisory duties and final decision-making authority with respect to permit
applications under the LDRs; and

WHEREAS, the availability of an appeal from an adverse decision serves to protect the
due process rights of applicants and affected parties; and

WHEREAS, the LDRs currently provide that certain decisions of the PZB and HRPB may
be administratively appealed to the City Commission as provided in section 23.2-17; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission has determined that the interests of due process would
best be served by providing for the appeal of HRPB and PZB decisions to circuit court; and

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2021 these amendments were reviewed by the City of Lake
Worth Beach Planning and Zoning Board, which made a recommendation to the City Commission
to approve the amendments; and

WHEREAS, on October 13, 2021 these amendments were reviewed by the City of Lake
Worth Beach Historic Resources Preservation Board, which made a recommendation to the City
Commission to approve the amendments; and



53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104

Pg. 2, Ord. 2021-09

WHEREAS, the City Commission has reviewed the recommended amendments and has
determined that it is in the best interest of the public health, safety and general welfare of the City,
its residents and visitors to adopt these amendments.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF
LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1: That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are ratified and confirmed as
being true and correct and are made a specific part of this ordinance as if set forth herein.

Section 2: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 1 “Decisionmakers,” Section 23.2-1 “City Commission,” is hereby amended as follows
(words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions):

The city is governed by a city commission consisting of five (5) elected members,
including a mayor as more particularly set forth in the City Charter. In addition to any
authority granted the city commission by state law, City Charter or other regulations of
the city, the city commission shall have the power and duty to act as the final

decisionmaker with respect to certain types of applications—and-appeals—A—table
" : . S horit | od ) g

Section 3:  Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 1 “Decisionmakers,” Section 23.2-7 “Historic Resources Preservation Board,”
Subsection (f) “Decisions and appeals,” is hereby amended as follows (words stricken are
deletions; words underlined are additions):

f)  Decisions and appeals. On rezoning, comprehensive plan and future land use
map advisory matters, the HRPB shall submit its recommendation in a written
report to the city commission, with a copy to the applicant and preservation
planner, documenting each consideration substantiating the board's
recommendation. On conditional uses, major site plans, variances and other
matters for which the HRPB renders a decision, such decision shall be in the
form of a written order, giving reasons therefor and including findings of fact.
Denials shall include a citation to the applicable legal authority forming the basis
for the denial. Should the applicant or an affected party decide to appeal the

Section 4:  Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 1 “Decisionmakers,” Section 23.2-8 “Planning and Zoning Board,” Subsection (e)
“Decisions and Appeals,” is hereby amended as follows (words stricken are deletions; words
underlined are additions):

e) Decisions and appeals. On advisory matters, the board shall submit its
recommendation in a written report to the city commission, with a copy to the
applicant and development review official, documenting each consideration
substantiating the board's recommendation. On matters that the board renders
a decision, such decision shall be in the form of a written order, giving reasons


https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART2AD_DIV1DE_S23.2-9SUILAU
https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART2AD_DIV2PR_S23.2-17AP

105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124

125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153

Pg.3, Ord. 2021-09

therefor and including findings of fact. Denials shall include a citation to the
applicable legal authority forming the basis for the denial. Should the applicant
or affected party decide to appeal the final decision of the planning and zoning

board, such apgeal tetheuettyeemmtssmr—the&ppheameepaﬁeeted—pany—ehau

deelstenéee—alseshall be to cwcwt court as prowded in sectlon 23.2-17 of thIS

article.

Section 5:  Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 1 “Decisionmakers,” Section 23.2-9 “Summary illustration of authority,” including Table
2-1, is hereby deleted in its entirety.

Section 6:  Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 2 “Procedures,” Section 23.2-15 “Notice Requirements for Public Hearings,” Table 2-2
“Notice Requirements,” is hereby amended at the last entry in the table as follows (words
stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions):

i . — F I
400 R

Section 7:  Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 2 “Procedures,” Section 23.2-16 “Quasi-judicial Procedures,” Subsection Q)
“Continuance,” is hereby amended as follows (words stricken are deletions; words underlined
are additions):

g) Continuance. The decision-making body may, on its own motion continue the
hearing to a fixed date, time and place. The applicant shall also have the right to one
(1) continuance. Affected parties, whether individually or collectively, shall also have the
right to one (1) continuance and irrespective of the number of affected parties, only one
(1) continuance may be granted. The continuance can be for no longer than thirty-one
(31) days, provided the request is to address neighborhood concerns or new evidence,
to hire legal counsel or a professional services consultant, or the affected party is unable
to be represented at the hearing. No more than one (1) continuance may be granted for
all affected parties. The decision-making body will continue the hearing to a fixed date,
time and place if applicable. However, all subsequent continuances shall be granted at

the sole dlscretlon of the deC|S|on maklng body Notwthst&ndmg—the—fepegomg—a

Section 8: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 2 “Procedures,” Section 23.2-17 “Appeals,” is hereby amended as follows
(words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions):




Pg. 4, Ord. 2021-09

154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195 eb) To circuit court. Any person or persons, jointly or severally, or entity, aggrieved
196 by the decision of the HRPB, planning and zoning board or city commission,
197 after first exhausting all administrative remedies, shall present to a circuit court
198 a petition for issuance of a writ of certiorari pursuant to the Florida law. H-a
199 . : h e o .

200
201



https://library.municode.com/fl/lake_worth_beach/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH23LADERE_ART5SURE_S23.5-4HIPR

202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250

Pg.5, Ord. 2021-09

Section 9: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-27 “Waiver,” Subsection a) “Community Residence,”
is hereby amended as follows (words stricken are deletions; words underlined are
additions):

3. The applicant and any affected party may appeal the decision of the board
to circuit courtthe—city-commission-pursuant to section 23.2-17. A waiver
becomes null and void and of no effect twelve (12) months from and after
the date of its final approval.

Section 10: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-29 “Conditional Use Permits,” Subsection b)
“‘Approval Authority,” is hereby amended as follows (words stricken are deletions; words
underlined are additions):

b) Approval authority. The planning and zoning board or historic resources
preservation board, as applicable, in accordance with the procedures, standards and
limitations of this section, shall approve, approve with conditions, or deny an application
for a development permit for a conditional use permit after review and recommendation
by the development review official. The board's decision on a conditional use permit

may be appealed to circuit courtthe-city-commission-by the applicant or affected party,
pursuant to section 23.2-17.

Section 11: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 2 “Administration,”
Division 3 “Permits,” Section 23.2-30 “Site Plan Review,” Subsection e) “Site Plan
Review Procedures for Major Developments,” is hereby amended as follows (words
stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions):

e) Site plan review procedures for major developments. If the development review
official determines that the application requires a major review, the application
shall be forwarded to the site plan review team for review and, determination
as to whether the application complies with applicable regulations. Once the
development review officer has made a determination of compliance, the
application will be scheduled for action by the planning and zoning board or the
historic resources preservation board, as applicable. The board shall consider
and act on site plan review applications for major developments. For all
applications, the board may:

1. Approve the application as submitted;
2. Approve the application with any reasonable conditions, limitations, or
requirements;
3. Deny the application for specific reason(s); or
4. Postpone consideration of any application pending submittal of
additional information which may be required to make a determination.
The board shall issue a written decision which shall be attached to the
application for site plan approval. Each consideration substantiating the action
of the development review official shall be included in the decision. The decision



251
252
253

254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299

Pg. 6, Ord. 2021-09

shall also include a citation to the legal authority on which a denial is based.
The decision of the board shall be final but may be unless-appealed to circuit

courtthe-eity-eommission; as provided in section 23.2-17.

Section 12: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 5 “Supplemental
Regulations,” Section 23.5-1 “Signs,” Subsection j) “Variances and Appeals,” Subsection
2 “Appeals,” Subsection D “Jurisdiction”, is hereby amended as follows (words stricken
are deletions; words underlined are additions):

(v) Appeals from board. Any adversely affected person or persons
aggrieved by any decision of the board may appeal such decision to circuit

courtthe-city-cemmission.

Section 13: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 5 “Supplemental
Regulations,” Section 23.5-4 “Historic Preservation,” Subsection (e) “Designation of Landmarks
and Historic Districts,” Subsection 8 “HRPB Recommendation,” is hereby amended as follows
(words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions):

I . \ helow. of thi o
CB. The division shall promptly notify the applicant and the property owner(s)
of the HRPB's recommendation.

Section 14: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 5 “Supplemental
Regulations,” Section 23.5-4 “Historic Preservation,” Subsection (e) “Designation of Landmarks
and Historic Districts,” Subsection 9 “City Commission Review and Designation,” is hereby
amended as follows (words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions):

A. The city commission shall by ordinance approve, modify or deny the
proposed designation within sixty (60) days of receipt of the HRPB's
recommendation. A decision to reverse an HRPB recommendation of
approval-shall be by no less than four (4) votes of the full city commission
or by no less than three (3) votes if the full city commission is not in
attendance.

Section 15: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 5 “Supplemental
Regulations,” Section 23.5-4 “Historic Preservation,” Subsection (e) “Designation of Landmarks
and Historic Districts,” Subsection 14 “Potential Landmark Designation,” is hereby amended as
follows (words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions):

B. Effect of pending applications for designation. When an application for
designation is made and notice is mailed to affected parties, no action with
respect to the exterior appearance of such site or district shall commence
unless approved in accordance with the procedures provided in subsection
e). In order to protect the city's general welfare, avoid an irreparable loss
and prevent circumvention of the protections of this article, such



300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350

Pg.7, Ord. 2021-09

requirement shall remain in effect until final disposition of the recommended
action. The applicant may apply to the HRPB for review of a proposed action
prior to final action by the city commission. The HRPB shall review the
application using the criteria established herein, including unreasonable
economic hardship. Permits may be issued upon HRPB approval of
de3|gnatlon She&ld—the—HRPB—deny—me—appheam_s—request—H%pp%am
. , ' If the
city commission decllnes to deS|gnate the Iandmark or hlstorlc dlstnct all
permitting requirements set forth herein shall no longer apply to any
proposed action.

Section 16: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 5 “Supplemental

Regulations,”

Section 23.5-4 “Historic Preservation,” Subsection (f) “Certificates of

Appropriateness, in General,” is hereby amended as follows (words stricken are deletions;
words underlined are additions):

2.

Effective date of certificate stayed pending appeal. A certificate of
appropriateness shall be effective immediately after the written rendition of
the decision, notwithstanding the permit approval from the building division.
If an appeal is made to the HRPB-er<city-commission, all work permitted by
the certificate of appropriateness shall automatically be stayed pending
the appeal.

Section 17: Chapter 23 “Land Development Regulations,” Article 5 “Supplemental

Regulations,”

Section 23.5-4 “Historic Preservation,” Subsection (n) “Appeal of Decisions

Regarding Certificates of Appropriateness,” is hereby amended as follows (words stricken are
deletions; words underlined are additions):

1.

Appeal of administrative decisions. Any administrative decision may be appealed
to the HRPB within fourteen (14) calendar days of its rendering. The HRPB shall
consider the record made in the administrative proceedings and shall not take
new testimony, and shall within sixty (60) days after the filing of the appeal reverse
the administrative decision only if it was contrary to law or arbitrary and capricious.

Appeal of HRPB decisions. Within thirty (30) days after the date of written
confirmation of a HRPB decision, the applicant or any affected party may appeal
to circuit court the—eity—ecommission any decision of the HRPB regarding an
appllcatlon for a certlflcate of approprlateness—pupsuam—teéec—zs—}%?—(e)—ef

Section 18: Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion

of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent

jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and

such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.

Section 19: Repeal of Laws in Conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict

herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.



351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394

Pg. 8, Ord. 2021-09

Section 20: Cadification. The sections of the ordinance may be made a part of the City
Code of Laws and ordinances and may be re-numbered or re-lettered to accomplish such, and

the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section”, “division”, or any other appropriate word.

Section 21: Effective Date. This ordinance shall become effective 10 days after
passage.
The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by , seconded
by and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
day of , 2021.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by ,
seconded by , and upon being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of
, 2021.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk



City of DEPARTMENT FOR COMMUNITY SUSTAINABILITY
'ty Planning Zoning Historic Preservation Division
' Lake Worth 1900 2N° Avenue North
Z Beach Lake Worth Beach, FL 33461

561-586-1687

DATE: September 30, 2021

TO: Members of the Planning & Zoning and Historic Resources Preservation Boards

FROM: William Waters, Director Community Sustainability

MEETING: October 5, 2021 & October 13, 2021

SUBJECT: PZB/HRPB 21-00400001 (Ordinance 2021-09): Consideration of an ordinance to Chapter 23 “Land

Development Regulations” regarding changes to the development appeal process.

BACKGROUND/ PROPOSAL:

The proposed amendments would modify the appeal process by providing for the appeal of Planning & Zoning
Board (PZB) and Historic Resources Preservation Board (HRPB) decisions to the circuit court. Appeals have required
legal review standards and process. As such, local governments have been moving towards development appeals
being heard by circuit court, as provided by Florida Statutes. The proposed ordinance would modify the
development approval appeal process, but would retain the local appeal authority relating to appeals of
administrative decisions of the development review official (DRO).

The proposed amendments would modify the following sections of the LDRs in Chapter 23 of the City’s Code of
Ordinances:
e Article 2, Section 23.2-1 - City Commission
e Article 2, Section 23.2-7 - Historic Resources Preservation Board
e Article 2, Section 23.2-8 — Planning and Zoning Board
e Article 2, Section 23.2-9 — Summary illustration of authority
Article 2, Section 23.2-15 — Notice Requirements for Public Hearings
Article 2, Section 23.2-16 - Quasi-judicial Procedures
Article 2, Section 23.2-17 — Appeals
Article 2, Section 23.2-27 - Waiver
Article 2, Section 23.2-29 - Condition Use Permits
Article 2, Section 23.2-30 -Site Plan Review
Article 5, Section 23.5-1 - Signs
Article 5, Section 23.5-4 - Historic Preservation

ANALYSIS:

The proposed amendments will remove the requirement for affected parties and applicants to first appeal to the
City Commission prior to circuit court. Circuit courts are the final appellant authority in land development decisions
in Florida as provided by Florida Statute. Removal of the requirement to first appeal to the City Commission would
allow for applicants and affected parties to go directly to the final appellant authority. Appeals also have specific
required legal review standards and procedures, including due process considerations. Florida’s circuit courts are



specifically tasked in the Florida Statues with this type of review. However, the proposed ordinance retains local
appeal authority by the appropriate review board for appeals of the decision of the DRO, including appeals of the
DRO'’s interpretation of the land development regulations.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that the Planning and Zoning Board and Historic Resources Preservation Board recommend that
the City Commission adopt PZB/HRPB 21-00400001 (Ordinance 2021-09).

POTENTIAL MOTION:

| move to RECOMMEND/NOT RECOMMEND TO THE CITY COMMISSION TO ADOPT the proposed LDR text
amendments included in 21-00400001 (Ordinance 2021-09).

Attachments
A. Draft Ordinance 2021-09



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: City Commission

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2021-21 — Second Reading — Ballot language to allow a candidate to concede
without forcing a run-off election

SUMMARY:

The ordinance provides a referendum question for the March 8, 2022, General Election to allow
a candidate to concede after the General Election without forcing a run-off.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The Charter Review Committee submitted recommendations to the City Commission regarding
changes to the City’s Charter at the October 5, 2021 regular meeting. This recommendation is
that a candidate may concede within 48 hours of the certification of the election results thereby
doing away with the need for a run-off election and allowing the remaining candidate to be duly
elected

In March 2019, four candidates ran for the District 4 Commission seat resulting in a run-off being
necessary as no candidate received a majority of the vote. The candidate who had the second
greatest number of votes conceded, but because the issue of concession was not addressed in
the Charter, the City held the run-off election. Adding an allowance for a concession would
prevent a run-off should a candidate concede, avoiding the time and expense of an election.

The ordinance was approved unanimously at the November 2, 2021 regular meeting. An
effective date has been added to the ordinance to clarify that this option to concede will be
applicable to any run-off candidate in an election after the March 2022 election.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2021-21 to allow a candidate to concede without forcing
a run-off election.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis — N/A
Ordinance 2021-21



2021-21

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-21 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM OF THE QUALIFIED
ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH TO BE HELD ON
MARCH 8, 2022, AS TO WHETHER SECTION 4 OF ARTICLE V OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH CHARTER SHALL BE AMENDED TO
PROVIDE A CANDIDATE WHO QUALIFIES FOR A RUN-OFF ELECTION
THE OPTION OF CONCEDING THE RUN-OFF ELECTION WITHIN A
TIME CERTAIN; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE AND ADVERTISING OF THE
REFERENDUM; PROVIDING FOR REFERENDUM CANVASSING;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, REPEAL OF ALL
CONFLICTING LAWS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, a Charter for the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) was
created and adopted pursuant to the Constitution and applicable laws of the State of
Florida; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.021, Florida Statutes, the City has the
governmental, corporate and proprietary powers to enable it to conduct municipal
government; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.021(4), Florida Statutes, the City Charter may
be amended through the City’s exercise of its authority, including the amendment of those
portions of its Charter which require a referendum, provided that a majority of the electors
in a referendum affirmatively vote to amend the Charter; and

WHEREAS, section 166.031, Florida Statutes, authorizes the governing body of a
municipality to submit proposed amendments to the Charter of the municipality in the form
of an ordinance to the electors of the municipality; and

WHEREAS, Article V, Section 4 of the City’s Charter currently provides for run-off
elections between the candidates who received the greatest number of votes in the
election for such office when no candidate receives the majority of the votes cast; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to provide candidates who qualify for a run-off election
the option to concede the run-off election within 48 hours of the certification of the election
results thereby doing away with the need for a run-off election and allowing the remaining
candidate to be duly elected; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the City
and serving a valid public purpose to conduct a referendum (the “Referendum”) on the
question of whether Article V, Section 4 of the Charter of the City of Lake Worth Beach
be amended to provide that a candidate who qualifies for a run-off election is authorized
to concede the run-off election within 48 hours of the certification of the election results
thereby doing away with the need for a run-off election and allowing the remaining
candidate to be duly elected.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA:



Pg. 2, Ord. No. 2021-21

Section 1. Findings adopted. The findings of the Commission set forth in the foregoing
recitals are hereby adopted as true and correct statements and specifically made a part
of this ordinance.

Section 2. Referendum declared. A referendum is hereby called for and shall be held in
the City on the 8th day of March, 2022, to determine whether or not a majority of the
electors voting in the Referendum support the proposed amendment to the City Charter,
as shown in Sections 6 and 7 of this ordinance.

Section 3. Ballot title. The ballot title which is the subject of this Referendum, and by
which the proposed Charter Amendment is to be commonly referred to or spoken of, shall
be captioned as “Option of Candidate to Concede Run-Off Election.”

Section 4. Conduct of Referendum. The City shall determine the polling locations or
places in coordination with the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections, and all
gualified electors of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida who vote in the Referendum
shall vote at those designated polling places. The polls shall be opened on the date of
the Referendum on the proposed City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Charter Amendment
from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. on the same day. Only the duly qualified electors of the
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida shall be permitted to vote on this Referendum question.

Section 5. Notice and advertising of the Referendum. The City Clerk shall prepare and
give notice of the proposed Charter Amendment by causing appropriate notice to be
published in accordance with the provisions of Section 100.342, Florida Statutes, which
provides for at least one publication each week during the third and fifth weeks preceding
the week in which the Referendum to consider the proposed Charter Amendment is to be
held. The publications shall be placed in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.
The City Clerk shall secure from the publisher of the newspaper, an appropriate affidavit
of proof that the statutorily required Referendum notices have been duly published, as
herein set forth and these two affidavits shall be part of the record of the City Commission.

Section 6. Ballot summary. The ballot summary of the proposed Charter amendment
shall be:

SHALL THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH AMEND ITS CHARTER AT
ARTICLE V, SECTION 4 TO PROVIDE THAT A CANDIDATE WHO
QUALIFIES FOR A RUN-OFF ELECTION IS AUTHORIZED TO
CONCEDE THE RUN-OFF ELECTION WITHIN 48 HOURS OF THE
CERTIFICATION OF THE ELECTION RESULTS THEREBY DOING
AWAY WITH THE NEED FOR A RUN-OFF ELECTION AND ALLOWING
THE REMAINING CANDIDATE TO BE DULY ELECTED?
YES

NO
Section 7. Charter amendment. In the event that the majority of electors of the City voting
in the Referendum vote affirmatively to amend Article V, Section 4 of the City Charter,
then said Article and Section shall be amended to read as follows:




Pg. 3, Ord. 2021-21

ARTICLE V. QUALIFICATIONS AND ELECTIONS

* * %

Sec. 4. — General, special and run-off elections.

Whenever a general or a special election is held to fill any elective office in the city,
the candidate receiving a majority of the votes cast at such election to fill such office
shall be declared to be duly elected; provided that in the event no candidate for a
particular elective office shall receive a majority of the votes cast at such election to fill
such office, then a run-off election shall be held two (2) weeks after the original election
to elect a candidate to fill such office; provided further that in such event only the names
of the two (2) candidates having received the greatest number of votes in the election
for such office shall be submitted to the electors and the one receiving the majority
number of votes in such run-off election shall be declared to be duly elected to such
office; provided further, that should two (2) or more candidates receive an equal number
of votes to any such office, so that it cannot be determined which two (2) had received
the greatest and the next greatest number of votes, then the names of all such
candidates shall be submitted at the run-off election and the candidate receiving the
greatest number of votes at such election shall be declared elected to such office,
regardless of whether such candidate received a majority of the votes cast to fill such
office at such run-off election.__A candidate who qualifies for a run-off election is
authorized to concede the run-off election within forty-eight (48) hours of the certification
of the election results. If only two candidates qualify for a run-off election and one of
the candidates timely concedes the run-off election, such run-off election will be
cancelled and the remaining candidate will be declared to be duly elected. The option
to concede shall be applicable to any run-off candidate in an election after the March
2022 election.

Section 8. Canvassing. The election returns of the Referendum shall be canvassed in
the manner provided by law, and the returns shall be certified to the City Commission,
which shall declare the result thereof. Upon canvassing the returns of the Referendum,
the result of the Referendum shall be recorded in the minutes of the City Commission in
the manner prescribed by law.

Section 9. Severability. If any section or portion of this ordinance, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstances, is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the ordinance which can be
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of
this ordinance are declared severable.

Section 10. Codification. The provision of this ordinance, as set out in Section 7 of this
ordinance, shall become and be made part of the Charter of the City of Lake Worth Beach,
Florida.

Section 11. Repeal of laws in conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances and
resolutions or parts of resolutions of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, that are in
conflict with any provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such
conflict.




Pg. 4, Ord. No. 2021-21

Section 12. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after
passage.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner
Malega, seconded by Commissioner Stokes, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was
as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch AYE
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson AYE
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE
Commissioner Christopher McVoy AYE
Commissioner Kim Stokes AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
2"d day of November, 2021.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,
the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kim Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of
, 2021.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:
Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa Coyne, City Clerk



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: City Commission

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2021-22 — Second Reading — Ballot language for changing to single-member
district voting, with the mayor remaining at-large

SUMMARY:

The ordinance provides a referendum question for the March 8, 2022, General Election to
change to single-member voting by district with the mayor remaining at-large.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The Charter Review Committee submitted recommendations to the City Commission regarding
possible ballot questions at the October 5, 2021 regular meeting. The committee members
recommended changing the voting from at-large for all commission seats to single-member
voting so that voters would only cast a ballot for the commissioner in their district. Voting for the
mayor would remain at large with all voters voting for the mayor and the commissioners would
continue to represent and act for the benefit of all residents.

According to Article Il — Legislative, Section 1 — City commission; powers and composition of
the Charter, the five (5) commission members shall be elected by the electors of the city-at-
large. The Charter Review Committee members felt that changing to single-member voting by
district would encourage more voters to turn out to vote for the representative for their district;
currently the districts with larger voter turn out impact who is elected in other districts.

The Commission gave consensus to move forward with a ballot question regarding single-
member district voting at the October 19, 2021 regular meeting.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2021-22 on second reading changing to single-member
district voting, with the mayor remaining at large.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis — N/A
Ordinance 2021-22



2021-22

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-22 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM OF THE QUALIFIED
ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH TO BE HELD ON
MARCH 8, 2022, AS TO WHETHER SECTION 1 OF ARTICLE Ill OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH CHARTER SHALL BE AMENDED TO
PROVIDE FOR SINGLE-MEMBER DISTRICT VOTING WHEREIN EACH
COMMISSIONER SHALL BE ELECTED BY THE ELECTORS RESIDING
IN HIS OR HER OWN DISTRICT AND WITH THE MAYOR CONTINUING
TO BE ELECTED BY THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY-AT-LARGE;
PROVIDING FOR NOTICE AND ADVERTISING OF THE REFERENDUM,;
PROVIDING FOR REFERENDUM CANVASSING; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, REPEAL OF ALL CONFLICTING LAWS
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, a Charter for the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) was
created and adopted pursuant to the Constitution and applicable laws of the State of
Florida; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.021, Florida Statutes, the City has the
governmental, corporate and proprietary powers to enable it to conduct municipal
government; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.021(4), Florida Statutes, the City Charter may
be amended through the City’s exercise of its authority, including the amendment of those
portions of its Charter which require a referendum, provided that a majority of the electors
in a referendum affirmatively vote to amend the Charter; and

WHEREAS, section 166.031, Florida Statutes, authorizes the governing body of a
municipality to submit proposed amendments to the Charter of the municipality in the form
of an ordinance to the electors of the municipality; and

WHEREAS, Article Ill, Section 1 of the City’s Charter currently provides that each
district of the city will be represented by one city commissioner who resides within such
district and that all city commissioners and the mayor will be elected by the electors of the
city-at-large; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to institute single-member district voting wherein each
city commissioner will be elected by the electors of the district in which each
commissioner resides instead of being elected by the electors of the city-at-large; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the City
and serving a valid public purpose to conduct a referendum (the “Referendum”) on the
question of whether Article 1ll, Section 1 of the Charter of the City of Lake Worth Beach



Pg. 2, Ord. No. 2021-22

be amended to provide for single-member district voting wherein each commissioner shall
be elected by the electors residing in his or her own district and continue to serve the
entire City and with the mayor continuing to be elected by the electors of the city-at-large.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA:

Section 1.  Findings adopted. The findings of the Commission set forth in the foregoing
recitals are hereby adopted as true and correct statements and specifically made a part
of this ordinance.

Section 2. Referendum declared. A referendum is hereby called for and shall be held
in the City on the 8th day of March, 2022, to determine whether or not a majority of the
electors voting in the Referendum support the proposed amendment to the City Charter,
as shown in Sections 6 and 7 of this ordinance.

Section 3.  Ballot title. The ballot title which is the subject of this Referendum, and by
which the proposed Charter Amendment is to be commonly referred to or spoken of, shall
be captioned as “Single-Member District Voting for City Commissioners.”

Section 4. Conduct of Referendum. The City shall determine the polling locations or
places in coordination with the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections, and all
gualified electors of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida who vote in the Referendum
shall vote at those designated polling places. The polls shall be opened on the date of
the Referendum on the proposed City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Charter Amendment
from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. on the same day. Only the duly qualified electors of the
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida shall be permitted to vote on this Referendum question.

Section 5.  Notice and advertising of the Referendum. The City Clerk shall prepare and
give notice of the proposed Charter Amendment by causing appropriate notice to be
published in accordance with the provisions of Section 100.342, Florida Statutes, which
provides for at least one publication each week during the third and fifth weeks preceding
the week in which the Referendum to consider the proposed Charter Amendment is to be
held. The publications shall be placed in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.
The City Clerk shall secure from the publisher of the newspaper, an appropriate affidavit
of proof that the statutorily required Referendum notices have been duly published, as
herein set forth and these two affidavits shall be part of the record of the City Commission.

Section 6. Ballot summary. The ballot summary of the proposed Charter amendment
shall be:

SHALL THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH AMEND ITS CHARTER AT
ARTICLE 1ll, SECTION 1 TO PROVIDE FOR SINGLE-MEMBER
DISTRICT VOTING WHEREIN EACH COMMISSIONER SHALL BE
ELECTED BY THE VOTERS RESIDING IN HIS OR HER OWN DISTRICT,
AND WILL CONTINUE TO REPRESENT THE ENTIRE CITY AND WITH



Pg. 3, Ord. 2021-22

THE MAYOR CONTINUING TO BE ELECTED BY THE VOTERS OF THE
CITY-AT-LARGE?

YES

NO
Section 7.  Charter amendment. In the event that the majority of electors of the City
voting in the Referendum vote affirmatively to amend Article Ill, Section 1 of the City
Charter, then said Article and Section shall be amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE Ill. LEGISLATIVE

* % *

Sec. 1. — City commission; powers and composition.

There shall be a city commission, with all legislative powers of the city vested
therein, consisting of five (5) members who shall be electors of the city;—and-whe-shall
be-elected-by-the-electors-of thecity-at-large. Each commissioner shall reside in one of
the single-member districts established, and only one commissioner may reside in each
district, except for the mayor who shall reside within the city. Candidates of the
commission shall reside in the district from which they seek to be elected. Members of
the commission shall reside in the district from which they were elected._ Each
commissioner shall be elected by the electors of the single-member district in which the
commissioner resides, and will continue to represent the entire city. The mayor shall
be elected by the electors of the city-at-large.

Section 8. Canvassing. The election returns of the Referendum shall be canvassed in
the manner provided by law, and the returns shall be certified to the City Commission,
which shall declare the result thereof. Upon canvassing the returns of the Referendum,
the result of the Referendum shall be recorded in the minutes of the City Commission in
the manner prescribed by law.

Section 9.  Severability. If any section or portion of this ordinance, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstances, is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the ordinance which can be
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of
this ordinance are declared severable.

Section 10. Codification. The provision of this ordinance, as set out in Section 7 of this
ordinance, shall become and be made part of the Charter of the City of Lake Worth Beach,
Florida.

Section 11. Repeal of laws in_conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances and
resolutions or parts of resolutions of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, that are in
conflict with any provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such




Pg. 4, Ord. No. 2021-22

conflict.

Section 12. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after
passage.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner
Malega, seconded by Commissioner Stokes, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was
as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch AYE
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson AYE
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE
Commissioner Christopher McVoy AYE
Commissioner Kim Stokes AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
2"d day of November, 2021.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,
the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kim Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of
, 2021.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:
Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: City Commission

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2021-24 — Second Reading — Ballot language regarding the filling of commission
vacancies

SUMMARY:

The ordinance provides a referendum question for the March 8, 2022, General Election
specifying a time line to fill a commission vacancy that occurs less than six (6) months before
the next General Election.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City Commission discussed possible changes to the City’s Charter at the October 5, 2021
regular meeting and gave consensus to move forward with a ballot question regarding the filling
of candidate vacancies at the October 19, 2021 regular meeting.

According to Article Il — Legislative, Section 5 — Vacancies; forfeiture of office; filling of
vacancies — (c) (1) Filling of vacancies in the City’s Charter, a commission vacancy occurring
less than six (6) months before the next regular city election shall be filled by the commissioner
or mayor being chosen and appointed by a majority vote of the remaining members to serve
until a newly elected commissioner or mayor is qualified. The City Commission proposed setting
the timing to fill such a vacancy occur no later than 24 hours prior to the beginning of the City’s
qualifying period.

The ordinance was approved unanimously at the November 2, 2021 regular meeting.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2021-24 regarding the filling of commission vacancies.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis — N/A
Ordinance 2021-24



O© 00O N O Ol & W N -

A D A D BA DD DEOWWWWWWWWWWNDNDNDNDNDNDNDNMDMDNMNDNNMNMNMNNNRERERERPRERPERPRERRERERPRPR
~N O O A WNPFP OO0 NOO OO D WONPFPOOWOWNOOOGEAAEWDNE O OOOLOMNO O WWNPEFE O

2021-24

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-24 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM OF THE QUALIFIED
ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH TO BE HELD ON
MARCH 8, 2022, AS TO WHETHER SECTION 5 OF ARTICLE Ill OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH CHARTER SHALL BE AMENDED TO
PROVIDE THAT A VACANCY ON THE CITY COMMISSION, WHEN
THERE ARE LESS THAN SIX MONTHS REMAINING IN THE
UNEXPIRED TERM OR LESS THAN SIX MONTHS BEFORE THE NEXT
REGULAR CITY ELECTION, SHALL BE FILLED BY THE REMAINING
MEMBERS NO LATER THAN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE OPENING OF
THE QUALIFYING PERIOD; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE AND
ADVERTISING OF THE REFERENDUM; PROVIDING FOR
REFERENDUM CANVASSING; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY,
CODIFICATION, REPEAL OF ALL CONFLICTING LAWS AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, a Charter for the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) was
created and adopted pursuant to the Constitution and applicable laws of the State of
Florida; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.021, Florida Statutes, the City has the
governmental, corporate and proprietary powers to enable it to conduct municipal
government; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.021(4), Florida Statutes, the City Charter may
be amended through the City’s exercise of its authority, including the amendment of those
portions of its Charter which require a referendum, provided that a majority of the electors
in a referendum affirmatively vote to amend the Charter; and

WHEREAS, section 166.031, Florida Statutes, authorizes the governing body of a
municipality to submit proposed amendments to the Charter of the municipality in the form
of an ordinance to the electors of the municipality; and

WHEREAS, Article 1, Section 5 of the City’s Charter currently provides that when
there is a vacancy on the city commission and there is less than six (6) months remaining
in the unexpired term or when there are less than six (6) months before the next regular
city election, the city commission, by a majority vote of the remaining members, are
required to appoint a successor to serve until a newly elected commissioner or mayor is
qualified; and

WHEREAS, there is no time limitation on when this appointment should be made
by the remaining members of the commission; and



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

Pg. 2, Ord. No. 2021-24

WHEREAS, the City Commission wishes to include a deadline on the appointment
of successors to fill a vacancy on the commission under these particular circumstances;
and

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the City
and serving a valid public purpose to conduct a referendum (the “Referendum”) on the
guestion of whether Atrticle Ill, Section 5 of the Charter of the City of Lake Worth Beach
be amended to provide that a vacancy on the city commission, when there are less than
six (6) months remaining in the unexpired term or less than six (6) months before the next
regular city election, shall be filled by the remaining members of the commission no later
than twenty-four (24) hours prior to the opening of the qualifying period for the next city
election.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA:

Section 1. Findings adopted. The findings of the Commission set forth in the foregoing
recitals are hereby adopted as true and correct statements and specifically made a part
of this ordinance.

Section 2. Referendum declared. A referendum is hereby called for and shall be held
in the City on the 8th day of March, 2022, to determine whether or not a majority of the
electors voting in the Referendum support the proposed amendment to the City Charter,
as shown in Sections 6 and 7 of this ordinance.

Section 3.  Ballot title. The ballot title which is the subject of this Referendum, and by
which the proposed Charter Amendment is to be commonly referred to or spoken of, shall
be captioned as “Deadline for Appointment of Successor to Fill Vacancy on City
Commission.”

Section 4. Conduct of Referendum. The City shall determine the polling locations or
places in coordination with the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections, and all
gualified electors of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida who vote in the Referendum
shall vote at those designated polling places. The polls shall be opened on the date of
the Referendum on the proposed City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Charter Amendment
from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. on the same day. Only the duly qualified electors of the
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida shall be permitted to vote on this Referendum question.

Section 5.  Notice and advertising of the Referendum. The City Clerk shall prepare and
give notice of the proposed Charter Amendment by causing appropriate notice to be
published in accordance with the provisions of Section 100.342, Florida Statutes, which
provides for at least one publication each week during the third and fifth weeks preceding
the week in which the Referendum to consider the proposed Charter Amendment is to be
held. The publications shall be placed in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.
The City Clerk shall secure from the publisher of the newspaper, an appropriate affidavit
of proof that the statutorily required Referendum notices have been duly published, as
herein set forth and these two affidavits shall be part of the record of the City Commission.

Section 6. Ballot summary. The ballot summary of the proposed Charter amendment
shall be:




97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123

124
125
126

127
128

129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136

137
138
139
140
141

Pg. 3, Ord. No. 2021-24

SHALL THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH AMEND ITS CHARTER AT
ARTICLE Ill, SECTION 5 TO PROVIDE THAT WHEN THE CITY
COMMISSION IS REQUIRED TO FILL A VACANCY ON THE
COMMISSION BY APPOINTMENT, SUCH APPOINTMENT SHALL BE
MADE BY THE REMAINING MEMBERS OF THE COMMISSION NO
LATER THAN 24 HOURS PRIOR TO THE OPENING OF THE
QUALIFYING PERIOD FOR THE NEXT CITY ELECTION?

YES

NO
Section 7. Charter amendment. In the event that the majority of electors of the City
voting in the Referendum vote affirmatively to amend Article Ill, Section 5 of the City
Charter, then said Article and Section shall be amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE Ill. LEGISLATIVE

* * %

Sec. 5. — Vacancies; forfeiture of office; filling of vacancies.

(a) Vacancies. The office of the mayor or of a commissioner shall become vacant upon
the death, resignation, removal from office in any manner authorized by law, or forfeiture
of such office by a member; such vacancy to be declared by the remaining members of
the commission.

(b) Forfeiture of office or candidacy. The mayor or a commissioner shall forfeit such
office or candidacy if lacking at any time during a term of office or candidacy any
gualification for the office prescribed by this charter or by law.

(c) Filling of vacancies. A vacancy of the city commission shall be filled in one of the
following ways:

(1) If there are less than six (6) months remaining in the unexpired term or if there
are less than six (6) months before the next regular city election, the city
commission by a majority vote of the remaining members shall choose and
appoint a successor to serve until a newly elected commissioner or mayor is
qualified._Such appointment shall be made no later than twenty-four (24) hours
prior to the opening of the qualifying period for the next city election. If a vacancy
occurs after the opening of the qualifying period for the next city election, then
this deadline will not apply.

(2) If there are more than six (6) months remaining in the unexpired term and no
general city election is scheduled within six (6) months, the city commission shall
fill the vacancy by a special election to be held no more than sixty (60) days
following the occurrence of the vacancy. If a run-off election is necessary, it shall
be scheduled two (2) weeks after the special election.



142
143
144
145
146

147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189

Pg. 4, Ord. No. 2021-24

(d) Extraordinary vacancies. In the event that three (3) or more members of the city
commission are removed by death, disability, the law, or forfeiture of office, the governor
shall appoint an interim commission that shall call a special election as provided in (c)(2)
above and such election shall be held in the same manner as the first election under
this charter.

Section 8. Canvassing. The election returns of the Referendum shall be canvassed in
the manner provided by law, and the returns shall be certified to the City Commission,
which shall declare the result thereof. Upon canvassing the returns of the Referendum,
the result of the Referendum shall be recorded in the minutes of the City Commission in
the manner prescribed by law.

Section 9.  Severability. If any section or portion of this ordinance, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstances, is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the ordinance which can be
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of
this ordinance are declared severable.

Section 10. Caodification. The provision of this ordinance, as set out in Section 7 of this
ordinance, shall become and be made part of the Charter of the City of Lake Worth Beach,
Florida.

Section 11. Repeal of laws in conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances and
resolutions or parts of resolutions of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, that are in
conflict with any provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such
conflict.

Section 12. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after
passage.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by Commissioner
Stokes, seconded by Commissioner McVoy, and upon being put to a vote, the vote was
as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch AYE
Vice Mayor Herman Robinson AYE
Commissioner Sarah Malega AYE
Commissioner Christopher McVoy AYE
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes AYE

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
2"d day of November, 2021.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,




190
191
192
193
194
195
196

197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213

the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kim Stokes

Pg. 5, Ord. No. 2021-24

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of

, 2021.

ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Betty Resch, Mayor



LAKE WORTH BEACH

City of

B peth Public
FLORIDA Workssm

TRAFFIC CALMING POLICY
DRAFT




,\ Eglje Worth PUbIlC
\ % Beach WOI'I‘(SW

CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH - TRAFFIC CALMING POLICY

The scope and purpose of this policy is to establish:

1) The objectives and general application of traffic calming within the City
of Lake Worth Beach on City owned roadways.

2) A predictable annual cycle and orderly process for any request that
involves traffic calming funds, regardless of where the request
originates, and with clear distinctions between identification of a
problem by residents and analysis by Palm Beach County Sheriff’s
Office traffic monitoring equipment and/or solutions developed by
professional consultants/traffic engineers.

3) Criteria for the review of traffic calming requests to determine
further analysis and validation of significant problems and potential
traffic calming measures.

4) Procedures to formally evaluate requests, including data
collection, traffic calming studies, and neighborhood meetings to
select a preferred solution.

5) A more equitable ranking procedure, establishing a clear and
convincing case to generate a prioritized list of possible traffic calming
projects, which can be employed when there are more traffic calming
projects proposed than funds available to construct all projects.

This policy neither lists all traffic calming measures, nor attempts to specify
which measure would be implemented in certain road or traffic operation
scenarios. Proper data shall be utilized by City staff and/or a traffic
consultant in certain instances to develop appropriate roadway solutions.

A. OBJECTIVES & GENERAL APPLICATION OF TRAFFIC CALMING

Traffic calming is intended to reduce the impact of motor vehicles on
roadways, residents, and road users. In the City of Lake Worth Beach, this
means primarily the reduction of motor vehicle speeds. The reduction of
motor vehicle traffic volumes on specific roadways is a sensitive issue
because of the risk of diverting traffic onto a neighboring road, especially
in a City with a traditional roadway grid system. Conversely, some chronic
neighborhood traffic problems concern levels of traffic volume on local
roadways that some residents may believe is excessive. Typically, a
significant portion of the traffic in these cases is considered "through"
traffic, because it neither originates from nor is destined to the broader
neighborhood. Traffic calming shall be used to reduce the impact of this
unwanted traffic.

Page 1



Collision mitigation might be accomplished by prohibiting the turn
movements of a relatively low number of motor vehicles. In these
cases, the benefits outweigh other considerations, unless the risk is
simply transferred to a neighboring intersection.’

Physical Traffic Calming Measures

There is a considerable range of options for traffic calming from
enforcement or traffic signs and pavement markings to construction
alternatives including speed humps/tables, traffic circles, raised median
islands, and bulb-outs/chokers (roadway narrowing). These construction
improvements are referred to as "physical" measures in this policy.

Physical traffic calming measures are categorized in two ways:

1) Vertical deflection: raising the road by using speed humps or

speed tables; and
2) Horizontal shift: moving vehicles off a certain alignment from one

side or another (e.g. traffic circles).

Generally, physical traffic calming measures are the most effective form of
traffic calming available. The use of these measures requires careful
application, so that large vehicles can still navigate where needed.
Installation of any new speed humps, speed tables, or platforms would be
based on City authority to introduce these measures.

Historically, some physical traffic calming has been installed at the request
of the residents when responding to neighborhood concerns about illegal,
threatening, or socially disruptive driving or other behavior. Such issues
will continue to be considered and evaluated on a case-by-case basis.

The City of Lake Worth Beach's roadway network includes designations
such as through, collector (major and residential), and industrial. The
following are designated per Chapter 21, Sec. 21-15 of the City’s Code

of Ordinances:
1) Lake Avenue — Through Street (Major Collector)
2) Lucerne Avenue — Through Street (Major Collector)

3) Ist Avenue South (East of the Florida East Coast Railroad) —
Collector (Residential)

4) 2rd Avenue North — Collector (Residential)
5) 4t Avenue South (West of Dixie Highway) — Collector (Residential)

6) 6t Avenue South — Through Street (Major Collector)

Page 2



7) 7*h Avenue North — Collector (Residential)
8) 10% Avenue North — Through Street (Major Collector)
9) 13t Avenue North — Collector (Residential)
10) Federal Highway — Through Street (Major Collector)
11) Boutwell Road — Major Collector
12) Detroit Street — Major Collector
*All other City roads are classified as either Residential or Industrial.

The application of physical traffic measures on through streets is
particularly sensitive. Some forms of horizontal shift physical traffic
calming can be applied to major roads, but even greater care must be
taken when high speeds and/or high traffic volumes are

concerned. This helps to ensure road users are not placed in greater
risk than by the traffic operation condition being mitigated.

Application of Traffic Calming Measures

If the problem submitted in a written traffic calming request to the City’s
Public Works Department is validated by recent traffic records and
subsequent data collection, a traffic calming device may be installed and/or
a traffic calming study can be authorized depending on the severity. This
traffic calming request should include: .

1) A description of the project location

2) Contact information of the resident/business owner making the
request

3) The reason for the traffic calming request
4) Any supporting documentation

If the request involves an intersection or street portion, neighboring streets
and intersections must be considered in view of the traffic calming
measures proposed and potential impacts on the immediate neighborhood
assessed if a "spill-over" effect is anticipated. In recommending solutions,
less costly and restrictive methods of calming should be considered first.

B. ANNUAL CYCLE & PROCESS FOR TRAFFIC CALMING REQUESTS

The steps in a traffic calming request/implementation process are as
follows:

1) Resident/Business Owner submits a written request to the

Page 3



City’s Public Works Department defining a problem in
their neighborhood.

2) Staff utilizes recent traffic records, Palm Beach County Sheriff’s
Office resources, and other acceptable methods to evaluate the
written traffic calming request submitted for consideration.
Validation of any significant problems will occur at this step.

3) Resident/Business Owner collects signatures of support for the
traffic calming recommendation from the staff defined traffic
calming area. This petition should include both the
resident/property owner’s name and street address.

4) If the request qualifies, staff shall define the traffic calming area and
provide a recommendation and/or a traffic calming study can be
authorized should funding allow.

5) If steps 1-4 have illustrated a need for traffic calming, City staff
shall prepare a cost estimate and project priority for review
by the City Commission on a biannual basis, who will have
final approval or denial of the traffic calming solution.

6) If funds are available in the current fiscal year, the project
shall be constructed contingent upon on approval. If funds
are not available, the project shall be included in the following
year’s budget.

C. CRITERIA FOR REVIEW OF TRAFFIC CALMING REQUESTS

When written traffic calming requests are submitted to the Public Works
Department providing information about observable hazardous conditions
and impacts, staff shall review the request along with recent traffic records
for the area (collisions, speed, volume) and roadway geometry (lane
width, on-street parking, grade, sight distance, driveway locations, etc).

The following criteria are used in the initial staff review of traffic calming
requests and validation of significant problems for further analysis and
potential implementation:

1) Any residential street area; and

2) To mitigate a documented collision pattern (bike, pedestrian, motor
vehicle); and/or

3) Where the 85th percentile speed profile is greater than 5 mph over
the speed limit; and

4) Where there is a documented probleni of a significant or
inappropriate number of "through" motor vehicles on the street or
in the neighborhood.

The 85%" percentile is defined as the speed at or below which 85% of the
observed free-flowing vehicles are traveling and is the most common

Page 4



method utilized in determining roadway speed limits. If there is a good
safety record, the speed profile (85th percentile) is within 5 mph of the
speed limit, and the traffic volume is appropriate for the street, the
applicant will be advised that no further action will be taken.

If this request was not previously denied and review indicates a
probable cause for further analysis, Public Works staff shall define a
petition area for signature collection by the residents/business owners.
When the petition is returned by the person requesting the traffic
calming and qualifying support is established from 66% of
households/businesses within the defined petition area (51% being
actual property owners), evaluation procedures shall be initiated as
soon as possible. Original traffic calming requests and petitions can be
mailed or delivered in person to the Lake Worth Beach Public Works
Department located at 1749 3rd Avenue South, Lake Worth Beach, FL
33460.

D. PROCEDURES TO EVALUATE REQUESTS FOR TRAFFIC CALMING

Data collection is conducted by the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office
and/or a traffic engineering firm related to the type and degree of the
problem that was defined in the request. This may include raw speeds,
vehicle counts, and field surveys to observe conditions. If the data
validates the request as a significant problem, staff will define the traffic
calming area and provide recommendations and/or a traffic calming study
can be authorized.

A cost estimate can then be drafted and presented to the City Commission
with a recommendation to utilize current or future funds. Should there be
multiple traffic calming requests, project priority must be established (see
E). '

E. RANKING PROCEDURE & PRIORITIZING TRAFFIC CALMING PROJECTS

A ranking procedure is applied when the evaluation is completed for
potential traffic calming projects. The following point system shall be used to
prioritize projects. These projects may include both new requests as well as
unfunded items from the prior year (due to limited funds to construct
physical traffic calming measures) that still qualify for consideration as
significant problems.

1) Traffic Speeds (85th percentile)

10 points for each mile per hour the 85th percentile is above the
speed limit plus 5§ mph. (e.g., if the speed limit is 25 mph and the
85th percentile is 32 miles = 2 X 10 points = 20 points) [Average
85th percentile of two directions]

2) Safety Rating (Collision History)

a. 10 points for each reportable motor vehicle-to-motor vehicle

Page 5



collision in the past five years which would have been
preventable with traffic calming (e.q., if a collision is caused by
a drunk driver, it may not be correctable with traffic
calming and therefore may not factor into the rating).

b. 25 points for each reported pedestrian or bicyclist injury or
fatality in the last five years that is considered preventable
with traffic calming.

3) Crosswalks and Sidewalks

a. 25 points for each uncontrolled intersection or mid-block
crosswalk.
b. 25 points if there is no sidewalk on a portion of the street

in question.

4) Traffic Volume

1 point for each 100 vehicles of average daily traffic above
the following thresholds:
a. 2-way volume on local streets — above 1,000
b. 1-way volume on local streets — above 500
c. 2-way volume on collector / arterial streets — above 2,500
d. 2-way volume on through streets — above 10,000

5) Bus Stops
15 points for each bus stop area

6) Proximity to Designated Community Facilities (schools, recreation
centers, senior &/or community centers, senior multi-family housing,
medical clinics, parks, libraries, etc.)

25 points for each of these types of institutions within 500 feet of
the road section or intersection in question.

7) Bike Facility

25 points if the proposal is on a road containing bike lanes.

8) Driveways (Conflict Points)
1 point for each driveway.

9) Proximity to Traffic Control Devices (signals, stop signs)

10 points if there are no traffic control devices within 400 feet.

10) Proximity to Existing Physical Traffic Calming Measures (speed
humps, circles)

25 points if there are no traffic calming measures within 400 feet
in any direction.

11) Trial of Less-Restrictive, Non-Physical, Corrective Traffic Calming
Measures

Page 6



25 points if other methods have been tested already, and
proven to be unsuccessful.

F. THE IMPORTANCE OF TRAFFIC CALMING

The City of Lake Worth Beach is a vibrant community and places extreme
value in the opinions and recommendations of its residents and business
owners. The aforementioned process detailed in this traffic calming policy
provides the foundation for sound roadway analysis to result in the safest
environment possible for both vehicular and pedestrian traffic within the
City. Please direct any traffic calming policy questions to the Public Works
Department.

Page 7



THE FOLLOWING IS LOCATED UNDER THE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND
DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES IN THE PUBLIC WORKS POLICY AND PROCEDURE
MANUAL

{ Ny

]
i 5 z
[ [l
sg. B ot
. Dl 1 g~ =
R - : 74 I
4 g g EE g
o X KI al~
[ [ " @ w
3 L
-STAMDARD BEFHALT HLE o = [ o
2R BTAMPED 8SPHALT HIRIP 4 o 3
e i) S il EXISTING ASPHALT E45TNG e g
] / LGS UINE S CALBS SUNE b
SN NN\ A BRICIC RUNNING o g' 3
BOND PATTERM S il
QLD ASPHALT ‘ \ \“s.\wnrr JOINT [TYF) N (e B
T SAWQUT & REMOVE
2' OF ASPHALT
{typical beth sdes) ¢
NOTE: ——ee
TF EXTSTING BASE IS DISTURBED, BASE SHALL BE e
COMPACTED PRIQR TO PRIME/TACK COAT PLACEMENT. :
PAVEMENT TIiE-IN DETAIL LANDSCAPE 5 t‘“]\\
AREA
o - [
|
VARIES (24'4)
EATFIWG § ST
TRIES SLGFE I CROES FOT
1]
{
&
SEF PAVEMENT TIE-IN DETAIL —
~ d b -]
TOP OF EXISTING : -
HENERIENTE 3 & _—STAMDARD ASFHALT HLMP
= i OR §TAMPED ASFHALT HLIMP
-~ e,
EXISTING BASE MATERIAL 1.0 TYP.—p—— ERISTING BASE MATERIAL
-.—-——ﬁ'
12" HUMP
HUMP PROFILE NDTES

1) THESE GISTANCES SHOWN ARE DIMEMSIONED FROM THE
FINISHED EXESTIMG GRADE,

2.) ALL ASPHALT HUMP DIMENSIONS ARE SYMMETRICAL ABOUT
CENTERLINE QF HUUMP,

SECTION A-A
SECTION A-A NOTES
|. THESE DISTANCES SHOWN ARE DIMENSTONED FROM EXISTING FAVEMENT

2. ALL ASPHALT HUMP OIMENSIONS ARE SYMMETRICAL ABOUT CENTERLINE OF HUMP
3. SAWCUT CLEAN, STRAIGHT EDGE AT FOOTER/ASPHALT [NTERFALE,

f —— ey —

CITY OF LAKE WORTH
PUBLIC SERVICES DEPARTMENT ASPHALT SPEED HUMP




THE FOLLOWING IS LOCATED UNDER THE CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND
DEVELOPMENT GUIDELINES IN THE PUBLIC WORKS POLICY AND PROCEDURE

MANUAL

LEGEND —-I+l-—
= DIRECTION OF TRAVEL 1

| X
CENTERLINE OF
TRAVEL LANE
100’

<11

T 1
|
I
|

{} - —— ~CENTER OF '
SPEED HUMP
I T A  |SPLED HUMP . N -
Q DESIGN WIDTH

CEN 1ERLINE '
OF ROADWAS 4 w0
\‘ 121 l_‘

TYPICAL T _center oF

6
— l.~—""| TRAVEL LANE ;
= 1" WHITE 4
. oy PAVEMENT .
Y _i_' MARKINGS —~_
|RAISED _ $
|CROSSWALK = % 5"
OR SPEED = y
TABLE AREA
TA R =
A o
1" SPACE~" = 1" WHITE
MARKINGS e
‘ 1 LEADING EDGE 7' g
OF SPEED HUMP | ‘
\ —
TYPICAL ADVANCE WARNING MARKINGS FOR SPEED HUMPS 8
$
CITY OF LAKE WORTH SPEED HUMP 32
PUBLIC 3ERVICES DEPARTMENT PAVEMENT MARKING DETAIL

— = Page 9



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: City Manager/Financial
Services

TITLE:

Resolution No. 83-2021 — Fiscal Year 2022 operating budget amendment providing $50,000
from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds
to support a partnership with the Legal Aid Society of PBC, Inc.

SUMMARY:

As part of the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, the City will be receiving two tranches of
Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds. On September 10, 2021, the first of two
tranches in the amount of $9,647,944 was received. The City Commission approved and ratified
a contract for legal aid eviction support with the Legal Aid Society of PBC, Inc. for the benefit of
Lake Worth Beach residents using a portion of these funds on September 9, 2021.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The Federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) issued an order that went into
effect September 4, 2020, which prohibited landlords from evicting tenants for non-payment of
rentif the tenant meets certain qualifications. The final extension of this order, expired
September 30, 2021. This Order does not relieve any individual of any obligation to pay rent,
make a housing payment, or comply with any other obligation that the individual may have under
a tenancy, lease, or similar contract. Nothing in the Order precludes the charging or collecting
of fees, penalties, or interest as a result of the failure to pay rent or other housing payment on a
timely basis, under the terms of any applicable contract.

On September 9, 2021, the City Commission approved to engage in a contract with the Legal
Aid Society of PBC, Inc. Legal Aid agrees to provide legal assistance services to eligible Lake
Worth Beach tenants experiencing the risk of eviction and/or homelessness.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Resolution No. 83-2021 — amending the fiscal year 2022 operating
budget providing $50,000 from the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 Coronavirus State and
Local Fiscal Recovery Funds to support a partnership with the Legal Aid Society of PBC, Inc.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Resolution 83-2021
Exhibit A



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures  $50,000 0 0 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 0 0 0 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Account Project | FY22 Current Budget Agenda Balance
Number Description Number | Budget Balance Transfer | Expenditure
130-1020- | Professional AP2201 | $O $0 $50,000 | $50,000 $0
512.31-90 Services




OCoOoO~NO O WDN PP

17
18

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33

34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

83-2021

RESOLUTION NO. 83-2021, SECOND BUDGET AMENDMENT OF THE CITY
OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION OF THE STATE OF
FLORIDA, MAKING SEPARATE AND SEVERAL BUDGET AMENDMENTS
AND CORRESPONDING APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY’'S NECESSARY
OPERATING EXPENSES, THE USES AND EXPENSES OF THE VARIOUS
FUNDS AND DEPARTMENTS OF THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2021 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) previously
adopted the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 Annual Operating Budget pursuant to
Resolution No. 60-2021 on September 27, 2021;

WHEREAS, the City finds it is necessary and essential to amend the FY
2022 Annual Operating Budget as set forth in this Resolution; and

WHEREAS, adoption of the FY 2022 Annual Operating Budget
amendments set forth herein serves a valid public purpose.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF
THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA, that:

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being true
and correct and are hereby incorporated into this Resolution.

Section 2.  As hereinafter stated in this Resolution, the term “fiscal year” shall
mean the period of time beginning October 1, 2021, and ending and including
September 30, 2022.

Section 3 The funds and available resources and revenues that are set out
and attached as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference, be, and the
same hereby are, appropriated to provide the monies to be used to pay the
necessary operating and other expenses of the respective funds and
departments of the City for the fiscal year.

Section 4. The sums, which are set out in Exhibit “A” and herein incorporated
by reference, listed as operating and other expenses of the respective funds and
departments of the City, be, and the same hereby are, appropriated and shall be
paid out of the revenues herein appropriated for the fiscal year.

Section 5. The revenues and the expenses for which appropriations are
hereby made, all set forth above, shall be as set out in the Amended City of Lake
Worth Operating Budget for the fiscal year as attached in Exhibit “A”.

Section 6. The sums set out in Exhibit “A” are hereinbefore incorporated by
reference and based upon departmental estimates prepared by the City Manager
and the Finance Director, shall be, and the same hereby are, fixed and adopted



47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

Pg. 2, Reso. 83-2021

as the amended budget for the operation of the City and its other enterprises for
the fiscal year.

Section 7.  Except as amended in Exhibit “A” hereto, the remainder of the FY
2022 Annual Operating Budget for the fiscal year remains in full force and effect.

Section 8.  This resolution shall become effective immediately upon passage.
The passage of this resolution was moved by Commissioner ,

seconded by Commissioner , and upon being put to a vote, the
vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kimberly Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this resolution duly passed and adopted
on the 16" day of November 2021.

LAKE WORTH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk



Expenditure

Professional Services/Legal

Operating Expenditures

Budget
2020

FY 2021
Budget

FY 2022
Budget
Adopted

FY 2022
Budget  FY 2022

Amend- Budget
ment Amended
50,000 50,000

50,000 50,000




EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: City Commission

TITLE:

Ordinance No. 2021-20 — First Reading — Ballot language for setting term limits of two
consecutive terms for a given seat by referendum on March 8, 2022

SUMMARY:

The ordinance provides a referendum question for the March 8, 2022, General Election to set
term limits of two consecutive terms for a given seat.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The Charter Review Committee submitted recommendations to the City Commission regarding
changes to the City’s Charter at the October 5, 2021 regular meeting. The first recommendation
was to have term limits of two consecutive terms for a given seat (terms are three years). Should
the referendum pass, a Commissioner or the Mayor could only serve for six years and would
not be able run again for the same seat in the next election. However, a Commissioner or Mayor
could run for a different seat or run again for the same seat after a break.

The ordinance was heard at the November 2, 2021 regular meeting at which time the
Commission requested that the ordinance specify the amount of time for which a Commissioner
or Mayor would have to sit out before running again. The ordinance clarifies that 23 months
would have to elapse before the elected official could run again for the previously held seat.
Term limits are not currently addressed in the Charter.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove Ordinance 2021-20 on first reading and set the second reading
and public hearing for December 7, 2021.

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis — N/A
Ordinance 2021-20



2021-20

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-20 OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH,
FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A REFERENDUM OF THE QUALIFIED
ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH TO BE HELD ON
MARCH 8, 2022, AS TO WHETHER SECTION 2 OF ARTICLE Ill OF THE
CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH CHARTER SHALL BE AMENDED TO
PROVIDE TERM LIMITS FOR THE POSITIONS OF MAYOR AND
COMMISSIONER; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE AND ADVERTISING OF
THE REFERENDUM; PROVIDING FOR REFERENDUM CANVASSING,;
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CODIFICATION, REPEAL OF ALL
CONFLICTING LAWS AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, a Charter for the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida (the “City”) was
created and adopted pursuant to the Constitution and applicable laws of the State of
Florida; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.021, Florida Statutes, the City has the
governmental, corporate and proprietary powers to enable it to conduct municipal
government; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to section 166.021(4), Florida Statutes, the City Charter may
be amended through the City’s exercise of its authority, including the amendment of those
portions of its Charter which require a referendum, provided that a majority of the electors
in a referendum affirmatively vote to amend the Charter; and

WHEREAS, section 166.031, Florida Statutes, authorizes the governing body of a
municipality to submit proposed amendments to the Charter of the municipality in the form
of an ordinance to the electors of the municipality; and

WHEREAS, currently the City’s elected officials (i.e., mayor and commissioners)
may serve an unlimited number of terms; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to provide for term limits for its elected officials which
includes a limit of two (2) consecutive terms for the position of mayor and commissioner;
and

WHEREAS, the offices of mayor and commissioner would be considered separate
offices for the purpose of such consecutive term limits so that, for instance, an individual
could serve two (2) consecutive terms as mayor and then two (2) consecutive terms as
commissioner with an overall limit of serving twelve (12) consecutive years as an elected
official; and

WHEREAS, the City Commission deems it to be in the best interests of the City
and serving a valid public purpose to conduct a referendum (the “Referendum”) on the
question of whether Article 1ll, Section 2 of the Charter of the City of Lake Worth Beach
be amended to provide that no person may serve more than two (2) consecutive terms
as mayor or commissioner wherein the offices of mayor and commissioners will be
considered separate offices for the purpose of such consecutive term limits and with an
overall limit of serving twelve (12) consecutive years as an elected official.



Pg. 2, Ord. No. 2021-20

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF LAKE
WORTH BEACH, FLORIDA:

Section 1.  Findings adopted. The findings of the Commission set forth in the foregoing
recitals are hereby adopted as true and correct statements and specifically made a part
of this ordinance.

Section 2. Referendum declared. A referendum is hereby called for and shall be held
in the City on the 8th day of March, 2022, to determine whether or not a majority of the
electors voting in the Referendum support the proposed amendment to the City Charter,
as shown in Sections 6 and 7 of this ordinance.

Section 3.  Ballot title. The ballot title which is the subject of this Referendum, and by
which the proposed Charter Amendment is to be commonly referred to or spoken of, shall
be captioned as “Term Limits for Mayor and Commissioners.”

Section 4. Conduct of Referendum. The City shall determine the polling locations or
places in coordination with the Palm Beach County Supervisor of Elections, and all
gualified electors of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida who vote in the Referendum
shall vote at those designated polling places. The polls shall be opened on the date of
the Referendum on the proposed City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida Charter Amendment
from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. on the same day. Only the duly qualified electors of the
City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida shall be permitted to vote on this Referendum question.

Section 5.  Notice and advertising of the Referendum. The City Clerk shall prepare and
give notice of the proposed Charter Amendment by causing appropriate notice to be
published in accordance with the provisions of Section 100.342, Florida Statutes, which
provides for at least one publication each week during the third and fifth weeks preceding
the week in which the Referendum to consider the proposed Charter Amendment is to be
held. The publications shall be placed in a newspaper of general circulation in the City.
The City Clerk shall secure from the publisher of the newspaper, an appropriate affidavit
of proof that the statutorily required Referendum notices have been duly published, as
herein set forth and these two affidavits shall be part of the record of the City Commission.

Section 6. Ballot summary. The ballot summary of the proposed Charter amendment
shall be:

SHALL THE CITY OF LAKE WORTH BEACH AMEND ITS CHARTER AT
ARTICLE Ill, SECTION 2 TO PROVIDE THAT NO PERSON MAY SERVE
MORE THAN A MAXIMUM OF TWELVE CONSECUTIVE YEARS AS A
CITY ELECTED OFFICIAL AND THAT NO PERSON MAY SERVE MORE
THAN TWO CONSECUTIVE FULL TERMS AS MAYOR OR
COMMISSIONER WHEREIN THE OFFICES OF MAYOR AND
COMMISSIONER WILL BE CONSIDERED SEPARATE OFFICES FOR
THE PURPOSE OF SUCH CONSECUTIVE TERM LIMITS?

YES

NO



Pg. 3, Ord. 2021-20

Section 7. Charter amendment. In the event that the majority of electors of the City
voting in the Referendum vote affirmatively to amend Article Ill, Section 2 of the City
Charter, then said Article and Section shall be amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE Ill. LEGISLATIVE

* * %

Sec. 2. — Election and terms.

On the second Tuesday in March a general election shall be held to elect
members of the city commission every three years for Mayor and Commissioners from
Districts 1 and 3 beginning in March 2018 and every three years for Commissioners
from Districts 2 and 4 beginning in March 2019. The election of members of the city
commission, except the mayor, shall be by districts to be known as Districts 1, 2, 3 and
4. The commissioners from Districts 2 and 4 shall be elected to three-year terms.
Commissioners from Districts 1 and 3 shall be elected to three-year terms. The mayor
shall be elected to a three-year term. No person may serve as mayor for more than two
consecutive full terms, and no person may serve as commissioner for more than two
consecutive full terms. The offices of mayor and commissioner will be considered
separate offices for the purpose of such consecutive term limits. If a person serves two
consecutive full terms in the same office, he or she may become eligible to serve in the
same office again only after not serving as an elected (or an appointed) official in the
city for twenty-three (23) months. Further, no person shall serve more than twelve (12)
consecutive years as a city elected official. If a person serves twelve (12) consecutive
years as a city elected official, he or she may become eligible to serve again only after
not serving as an elected (or an appointed) official in the city for twenty-three (23)
months. The term limits and twelve year maximum limit will be applicable to any
individual elected to a full term of office on or after the March 2022 election. As used in
this_section, the term “appointed” means appointed to serve as a commissioner or
mayor. The mayor and each commissioner shall serve until a successor has been duly
qualified, elected and the election results certified by resolution of the city commission,
or upon appointment, by resolution of the city commission. Such resolution shall be
considered at the special meeting called to canvass the ballots, and shall be the order
of business next following the canvass of ballots. Such special meeting shall be held no
later than forty-eight hours after election results are furnished in writing to the city clerk
by the supervisor of elections. No meeting shall be called, or business conducted by the
city commission, except for emergency matters, after the polls close, until such time as
the results of such election are canvassed.

Section 8. Canvassing. The election returns of the Referendum shall be canvassed in
the manner provided by law, and the returns shall be certified to the City Commission,
which shall declare the result thereof. Upon canvassing the returns of the Referendum,
the result of the Referendum shall be recorded in the minutes of the City Commission in
the manner prescribed by law.

Section 9.  Severability. If any section or portion of this ordinance, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstances, is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction,
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the ordinance which can be
given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of
this ordinance are declared severable.




Pg. 4, Ord. No. 2021-20

Section 10. Codification. The provision of this ordinance, as set out in Section 7 of this
ordinance, shall become and be made part of the Charter of the City of Lake Worth Beach,
Florida.

Section 11. Repeal of laws in conflict. All ordinances or parts of ordinances and
resolutions or parts of resolutions of the City of Lake Worth Beach, Florida, that are in
conflict with any provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such
conflict.

Section 12. Effective date. This ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days after
passage.

The passage of this ordinance on first reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon
being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kim Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on first reading on the
day of , 2021.

The passage of this ordinance on second reading was moved by
, seconded by , and upon being put to a vote,
the vote was as follows:

Mayor Betty Resch

Vice Mayor Herman Robinson
Commissioner Sarah Malega
Commissioner Christopher McVoy
Commissioner Kim Stokes

The Mayor thereupon declared this ordinance duly passed on the day of
, 2021.

LAKE WORTH BEACH CITY COMMISSION

By:

Betty Resch, Mayor

ATTEST:

Melissa Ann Coyne, City Clerk



EXECUTIVE BRIEF
REGULAR MEETING

AGENDA DATE: November 16, 2021 DEPARTMENT: Water Utilities

TITLE:

Purchase authorization for Quicklime from Lhoist North America of Alabama, LLC for the Water
Treatment Plant

SUMMARY:

Authorization the purchase of Quicklime from Lhoist North America of Alabama LLC, for an
amount not to exceed $153,145.00. This amount is based on an estimated usage for the year
of 500 tons at $306.29 per ton.

BACKGROUND AND JUSTIFICATION:

The City of Lake Worth Beach is a member of a local cooperative purchasing effort, which
includes the Cities of Rivieria Beach and Boynton Beach. The City of Tamarac is the lead
agency on this cooperative bid. As a member of the cooperative purchase the Cities are able
to leverage its purchasing power with its neighboring utilities to provide a critical chemical at a
price point that would be otherwise unattainable.

Quicklime is a necessary chemical which, when added to the raw water supply, precipitates the
coagulation process necessary to remove hardness, color and iron content, as well as other
contaminants.

The City of Tamarac bid the purchase in September 2020. Lhoist North America of Alabama,
LLC was the lowest responsive bidder. The purchase agreement was authorized to September
23, 2020, by the City of Tamarac on November 01, 2020, with a price of $306.29 per ton. The
original agreement is valid for three (3) years with one (1) additional one (1) year renewal
options.

MOTION:

Move to approve/disapprove purchase of quicklime from Lhoist North America of Alabama, LLC,
for an amount not to exceed $153,145.00

ATTACHMENT(S):

Fiscal Impact Analysis
Contract
Pricing



FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS

A. Five Year Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Fiscal Years 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Capital Expenditures 0 0 0 0 0
Operating Expenditures ~ $153,145  $153,145 O 0 0
External Revenues 0 0 0 0 0
Program Income 0 0 0 0 0
In-kind Match 0 0 0 0 0
Net Fiscal Impact 153,145.00 153,145.00 O 0 0
No. of Addn’l Full-Time
Employee Positions 0 0 0 0 0
B. Recommended Sources of Funds/Summary of Fiscal Impact:
Account Account Project FY22 Current Agenda Balance
Number Description Number Budget Balance Expenditure
402-7022- | Operating N/A $504,500 | $457,665.55 | -$153,145 $304,520.55
533-52-30 | Supplies/Chemicals




TAMARAC
P Yl

. The City For Your Lif ) T
City of Tamarac L L Purchasing and Contracts Division

AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF TAMARAC
AND
LHOIST NORTH AMERICA OF ALABANMA, LLC

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this C_(i(:’_ day ofw, 2010 by and between
the City of Tamarac, a municipal corporation with principal offices located at 7525 N.W. 88th Ave.,
Tamarac, FL 33321 (the “CITY") and Lhoist North America of Alabama, LLC an Alabama Limited Liability
corporation duly registered as a Florida Foreign Limited Liability corporation with principal offices located
at 5600 Clearfork Main Street, Suite 300, Fort Worth, Texas 76109 (the “Contractor”) to Furnish, Deliver
and Discharge of Quicklime for the City of Tamarac and participating member of the Southeast Florida
Governmental Purchasing Cooperative.

Now therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the City and Contractor
agree as follows:

1. The Contract Documents

The contract documents consist of this Agreement, Bid Document No. 20-21B, “Furnish, Deliver
and Discharge Quicklime”, including all conditions therein, (General Terms and Conditions, Special
Conditions and/or Special Provisions), drawings, Technical Specifications, all addenda, the Contractor’s
bid/proposal included herein, and all modifications issued after execution of this Agreement; and
Attachment A, which is a schedule of delivered pricing for individual delivery locations. These contract
documents form the Agreement, and all are as fully a part of the Agreement as if attached to this
Agreement or repeated therein. In the event that there is a conflict between Bid Document No. 20-21B,
“Furnish Deliver and Discharge Quicklime”, as issued by the City, and the Contractor's Proposal, Bid
Document No. 20-21B, as issued by the City shall take precedence over the Contractor’'s Proposal.
Furthermore, in the event of a conflict between this document and any other contract documents, this
Agreement shall prevail.

2. The Work

21. The Contractor shall perform all work for the City required by the contract documents as
set forth below:

2.1.1 Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and equipment necessary to Furnish,
Deliver and Discharge Quicklime in accordance with the Technical
Specifications, terms and conditions contained in Bid Document 20-21B,
“Furnish, Deliver and Discharge Quicklime”.

2.1.2 Contractor shall supervise the work force to ensure that all workers conduct
themselves and perform their work in a safe and professional manner.
Contractor shall comply with all OSHA safety rules and regulations in the
operation of equipment and in the performance of the work. Contractor shall at
all times have a competent field supervisor on the job site to enforce these
policies and procedures at the Contractor's expense.

2.1.3 Contractor shall comply with any and all Federal, State, and local laws and
regulations now in effect, or hereinafter enacted during the term of this
Agreement, which are applicable to the Contractor, its employees, agents or
subcontractors, if any, with respect to the work and services described herein.




TAMARAC
P gl g

The City For Your Life

City of Tamarac Purchasing and Contracts Division

2.1.4 Contractor shall be required to provide a copy of the "Contractor Pass Request
Form" (See attached Appendix A to Bid Document No. 20-21B), with photo
identification of all personnel authorized to be on premises at City delivery sites.

2.1.5 Personnel additions and/or deletions shall be reported to the City's designated
representative in writing, via fax to a number to be provided by the using agency,
within twenty four (24) hours of the personnel change, by modification of the
names submitted on the original Contractor Pass Request Form.

2.1.6 All personnel shall check-in with the Security Guard or Operator on duty
immediately upon arrival at any delivery location. Photo identification, purpose of
visit, and name of City staff contact, shall be required for entry.

2.1.7 Contractor shall ensure that only authorized Contractor employees and/or
authorized City personnel shall have access to Contractor/City vehicles, work
site, equipment, work products, reports, electronic data and any/all other
information pertaining to the City. Contractor shall not admit any unauthorized
personnel onto any work site. Contractor will not release, discuss or share any
information on systems, equipment and/or operations, to any non-City personnel.

2.1.8 Upon leaving premises, all personnel shall be required to check out with the
Security Guard or Operator on duty.
3. Insurance

31. Contractor shall obtain at Contractor’s expense all necessary insurance in such form and
amount as specified in the original bid document or as required by the City’s Risk and
Safety Manager before beginning work under this Agreement including, but not limited to,
Workers' Compensation, Commercial General Liability, Builder's Risk and all other
insurance as required by the City, including Professional Liability when appropriate.
Contractor shall maintain such insurance in full force and effect during the life of this
Agreement. Contractor shall provide to the City’s Risk and Safety Manager certificates of
all insurances required under this section prior to beginning any work under this
Agreement. The Contractor will ensure that all subcontractors comply with the above
guidelines and will retain all necessary insurance in force throughout the term of this
agreement.

3.2 Contractor shall indemnify and hold the City harmless for any damages resulting from
failure of the Contractor to take out and maintain such insurance. Contractor's Liability
Insurance policies shall be endorsed to add the City as an additional insured; and shall
list the City as the Certificate Holder. Contractor shall be responsible for payment of all
deductibles and self-insurance retentions on Contractor's Liability Insurance policies.
Insurance limits are outlined below:

o General Liability - $1M per occ. / $2M aggregate
o Automobile — $1M per occ. / $1M aggregate
o  Workers Comp — Statutory

3.3 Contractor shall at a minimum, provide the level of coverage provided for in Section 3.2
of this Agreement to any other organization in the Southeast Florida Governmental
Purchasing Cooperative, and shall provide those agencies with their own Certificate of
Insurance to validate coverage for their entity.

4, Term

The term of this Agreement shall be for an initial three (3) year period, beginning November 1,
2020 through October 31, 2023. The City reserves the right to renew this Agreement for three (3)
additional one (1) years periods subject to the Contractor's acceptance, satisfactory performance, and
determination that renewal will be in the best interest of the City.

2




TAMARAC
P

The City For Your Life

City of Tamarac Purchasing and Contracts Division

5. Contract Sum

The Contract Sum for the above work for entities listed in Attachment A (UNIT PRICING
PROVIDED IN BID) herein, shall be based on delivered cost per ton. The Contract sum includes all
labor, materials and freight charges for the job also known as Bid No. 20-21B, “Furnish, Deliver, and
Discharge Quicklime” for the Southeast Florida Government Purchasing Cooperative entities listed in
Attachment A. All Terms and Conditions, except product price, freight, transfer, and rail and truck fuel
surcharges shall remain firm through the term of the contract, Pricing shown in Attachment A, shall be
firm for the initial contract period from November 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020, Pricing changes
will thereafter be allowable on a quarterly basis in accordance with Section 5.3, “Escalation / De-
escalation” shown herein beginning on January 1, 2021.

5.1 Contract Pricing shall be based on delivered cost per ton. The Contract sum includes all
labor, materials and freight charges pricing shall be firm for the initial contract period
from November 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020. Pricing changes will thereafter be
allowable on a quarterly basis in accordance with Section 5.3, “Escalation / De-
escalation” shown herein beginning on January 1, 2021.

52 In consideration of fluctuations in fuel prices, the City will allow rail and trucking fuel
surcharges during the term of the contract.

5.2.2 Rail Surcharge — The rail fuel surcharge rate will be based on actual contracts,
invoices or published rates of the contractor’s rail carrier. Contractor shall provide
documentation regarding the rail carrier's pricing as a part of the request for an
adjustment to the rail surcharge. No surcharge will be applied on top of another
one. The Bidder should provide a rail fuel surcharge schedule as part of their bid
submittal in the area provided in Attachment B herein.

5.2.3 Trucking Surcharge - The truck fuel surcharge rate will be based on the Trucking
Fuel Surcharge Scale contained in Attachment B herein, which shall be
determined by referencing the Retail On-Highway Diesel Price — U.S. Average,
as published by the U.S. Department of Energy, Energy Information
Administration (DOE) for the third Monday of the final month of each quarter. The
truck fuel surcharge will be applied to the base contract price per ton of quicklime
transported effective with the start of the next quarter. No surcharge will be
applied on top of another one. The Contractor shall utilize the trucking fuel
surcharge scale included in Attachment B as a basis for adjustment, and
surcharge adjustments will be based on that scale. = The DOE Retail On-
Highway Diesel Price — US Average index may be found at:
http://tonto.eia.doe.gov/oog/info/wohdp/diesel_detail_report combined.asp

53 Escalation/De-escalation:

5.3.1 The City will accept price adjustments on a quarterly basis on January 1t, April
1st, July 1%t and October 15t of each year. The Contractor must submit sufficient
documentation to be given consideration for a price increase; and must pass-on
a price decrease when the Contractor's costs are reduced. Approved
documentation includes, but is not limited to published U.S. Department of
Energy (DOE) reports on coal costs, Platt’s Coal Index, U.S. Bureau of Labor
Statistics (BLS) reports on Producer Price Index (PPI) for all commodities, U.S.
Energy Information Administration WTI publications on spot crude oil prices, BLS
Electric Power Generation, Transmission and Distribution Index, BLS Crushed
and Broken Limestone Index, BLS mining Machinery and Equipment Index; and
copies of vendor monthly internal cost reports and/or actual invoices.

5.3.2 Rail and Truck freight charges and changes for transfer costs require written

3.




TAMARAC
N N

. The City For Your Life : ; . ;o
City of Tamarac ’ Purchasing and Contracts Division

verification from vendor's freight and transfer subcontractors, provided to the
Purchasing & Contracts Division prior to initial contract term expiration of the
Agreement. All Rail and Truck fuel surcharges will be applied initially on
November 1, 2020, subject to change in accordance with the schedule provided
in Attachment B herein.

5.3.3 The City acknowledges that Contractor's rail and truck carriers adjust fuel
surcharges monthly. The Contractor will apply fuel surcharges for each quarter
based on the amount of the rail and truck fuel surcharges in effect for the month
preceding the quarterly price change as calculated in accordance with Section
5.2 of this Agreement, utilizing Attachment B to this Agreement.

5.3.4 Cost adjustments, in all cases, shall reflect only a direct pass-through of costs,
and no changes to the Contractor’'s profit margin shall be permitted. The City
and the Contractor may also utilize recognized government/industry indices or
combination of indices to be mutually agreed upon by the City and Contractor,
when determining price increases. The City reserves the right to allow the
Contractor to utilize alternative indices for price adjustment justification; however,
the Contractor will only be allowed to change these indices at the time of any
potential contract renewal, unless the index or indices cease publication, in which
case the Contractor will be allowed to make changes to for any discontinued
index during the contract period. The City reserves final judgement in the
determination of the acceptance of specific indices to be utilized for the
justification of price adjustments.

6 Payments

A monthly payment will be made for work that is completed, accepted and properly invoiced. The
City shall pay the Contractor for work performed subject to the specifications of Bid 20-21B. All payments
shall be governed by the Local Government Prompt Payment Act, F.S., Part VII; Chapter 218.

7 Conditions of Material

All materials and products supplied by the Contractor in conjunction with this agreement shall
conform to the specifications of the original bid #20-21B. The City reserves the right to return the product to
the Contractor and require the delivery of new product at no cost to the City.

8 Indemnification

8.1 The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the City, its elected and appointed
officials, employees, and agents from any and all claims, suits, actions, damages, liability,
and expenses (including attorneys’ fees) in connection with loss of life, bodily or personal
injury, or property damage, including loss of use thereof, directly or indirectly caused by,
resulting from, arising out of or occurring in connection with the operations of the
Contractor or its officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, or independent
Contractors, excepting only such loss of life, badily or personal injury, or property
damage solely attributable to the negligence or willful misconduct of the City or its elected
or appointed officials and employees. The above provisions shall survive the termination
of this Agreement and shall pertain to any occurrence during the term of this Agreement,
even though the claim may be made after the termination hereof.

8.2 Upon completion of all Services, obligations and duties provided for in this Agreement, or
in the event of termination of this Agreement for any reason, the terms and conditions of
this Article shall survive indefinitely.




TAMARAC
P el P

The City For Your Life

City of Tamarac Purchasing and Contracts Division

i. The Contractor shall pay all claims, losses, liens, settlements or judgments of any
nature whatsoever in con